Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

TUESDAY, 22ND JULY, 2008 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Mallett (Vice-Chair), Bull, Davies,
Diakides, Gorrie and Mughal

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 15 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 6)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on 24 June 2008.
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTS 07/08

Report of the Chief Financial Officer report and consider the accounting policies that
have been followed in the production of the Council’s financial statements for
2007/08.

TO FOLLOW
UPDATE ON KEY AUDIT ISSUES (PAGES 7 - 10)

Report of Grant Thornton to provide members with an update on the accounting and
business risks identified in the audit plan presented to Audit Committee in July 2007
and updated in January 2008.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING TO HOUSING
BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT (PAGES 11 - 14)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise and update members on the Counter
Fraud performance of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service from the 15 April 2008
— 30" June 2008.

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY RELATING TO HOUSING BENEFIT
AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT FRAUD (PAGES 15 - 22)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform members of the requirement to adopt
an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Benefit and to enable this to proceed to Audit Committee for approval.

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY (PAGES 23 - 46)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the revised Corporate Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and
Whistle-blowing Policy.

MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS 2007 (PAGES 47 - 54)



Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to:

a) ldentify the impact on the Council of the new Money Laundering Regulations
2007 that came into effect on 15 December 2007. These build upon the
existing Money Laundering Regulations 2003, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002,
Terrorism Act 2000, and the Terrorism Act 2006.

b) Provide a revised Anti-Money Laundering Policy and procedures for approval.

12. INTERNAL AUDIT - 1ST QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 55 - 84)
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Committee of the
work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service for the first quarter 2008/09 and reports
outstanding from 2007/08.

13. REPORT ON THE WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2007/08 (PAGES 85 - 92)
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the proposed report to Full Council in respect of the work undertaken by the Audit
Committee during 2007/08.

14. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA) 2000 (PAGES 93 - 98)
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
RIPA and its operation in practice within Haringey.

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 28 October 2008, 19:30 hours.

Yuniea Semambo Helen Jones

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Coordinator

5™ Floor Tel: 020 8489 2615

River Park House Fax: 020 8489 2660

225 High Road Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ 14 July 2008



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

PRESENT

Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Mallett (Vice-Chair), Bull, Diakides, Mughal and
Wilson

Apologies Councillor Davies, Councillor Gorrie

MINUTE ACTION

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Davies and
Councillor Gorrie, for whom Councillor Wilson was substituting.

NOTED

PRAC20. URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business.

NOTED

PRAC21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Rahman Khan declared an interest as Chair of the Pensions
Committee, which was referred to in the report on the External Audit and
Inspection Plan 2008/09.

PRAC22.. MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 12 May

2008 be agreed and signed by the Chair as an accurate record of the
proceedings.

PRAC23. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRAC24. EXTERNAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN 2008/09 - FROM GRANT
THORNTON

The representative from Grant Thornton introduced the external audit
and inspection plan 2008/09, which was a document produced jointly by
Grant Thornton and the Audit Commission. As the Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA) replaced the Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA) from 1 April 2008, it was reported that the role of
Relationship Manager would be replaced by a Comprehensive Area
Assessment Lead, who would supervise all inspection activity relating to




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

the Council. It was also reported that a separate audit plan would be
issued for the Council's Pension Fund, as instructed by the Audit
Commission. The external audit and inspection plan also outlined the
new framework for the Use of Resources audit, Financial Statements
audit, grant claims and returns, inspection activity for 2008/09 and
estimated audit and inspection fee.

In response to a request from Councillor Wilson for further details about
the separate audit plan for the Pension Fund, Grant Thornton reported
that the Pension Fund had always been audited, but that this work would
now be presented separately in line with new practice. It was reported
that this work would now be charged directly to the Pension Fund, but
that further details regarding the process were awaited from the Audit
Commission. Councillor Wilson welcomed the fact that the operational
and financial issues relating to Alexandra Park and Palace were
identified as a key risk in the Use of Resources audit and hoped that
further progress on these issues would be made.

In response to a request for clarification of the bullet point relating to the
production of annual accounts on page 32, Grant Thornton reported that
if the Council were to achieve a level 4 in relation to the Key Line of
Enquiry 1.1 for the production of annual accounts then there may be
scope for a reduction in the audit fee.

Councillor Diakides asked for an explanation of the process for
suggesting additional areas of activity to be included in the plan. It was
reported that any suggestions should be raised with Internal Audit, who
would carry out a risk assessment. Areas identified as high risk would
then be included on the external audit and inspection plan going forward.
Any change to the suggested external audit and inspection plan for the
next year, 2008/09, would be reported to the Committee at the meeting
in January 2009.

The Chair welcomed the introduction of a separate audit plan for the
Pension Fund, and also noted that the facilities management services for
the Schools PFI scheme and the operational and financial issues relating
to the management of Alexandra Park and Palace were areas which
required resolution and had been highlighted in the Audit Commission’s
Audit and Inspection Letter. The Audit Committee had accordingly
highlighted the need for effective resolution of these issues at its last
meeting, as recorded in the minutes.

The Chair further raised the issue of potential understatement of the
existing population, as stated on page 22, was raised as a concern and
sought the external auditor's assistance on the issue. The Chair
welcomed the move from the CPA to the CAA, but added that the
external auditor’s assistance would be needed in order to maximise the
Council’s rating in the new system while at the same time ensuring that
the interests of all stakeholders were safeguarded.

In reply to a query from the Chair, the Chief Financial Officer confirmed
that he was satisfied with the external audit and inspection plan 2008/09




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

as presented. On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED

That the content of the external audit and inspection plan 2008/09 be
noted, along with the comments and concerns recorded above.

PRAC25.

HEALTH INEQUALITIES - REPORT TO AUDIT COMMITTEE

The representative from Grant Thornton presented a summary of the
findings in respect of the work undertaken on health inequalities in
Haringey. The findings had also been reported to key Council staff, the
PCT and the Well Being Partnership Board. An action plan would be
formulated by the partners.

It was reported that the overall findings were positive, and that Haringey
was advanced in its health inequalities agenda. Specific points relating
to the Key Lines of Enquiry numbers 1—6 were outlined in the summary
document.

In response to a question from the Committee about why this report was
being presented to the Audit Committee, the Chief Financial Officer,
Gerald Almeroth, reported that the Committee was required to see the
report in its capacity of overseeing the work of the auditors. It was noted
that it was not within the remit of the Committee to carry out the
recommendations of the report, although any relevant comments by the
Committee could be forwarded to the Well Being Partnership Board for
consideration. The Committee could also request to see the action plan
to see that there was a robust management response in place.

Councillor Bull expressed concern that the health inequalities agenda in
Haringey was considered to be well advanced, as much further progress
was required in this field. Grant Thornton reported that the assessment
was based on the systems that were in place for delivery, rather than the
extent of progress made to date and that the findings would be updated
as further progress was made.

In relation to KLOE 2 on partnership working, Councillor Diakides
expressed concern at the lack of opportunity for areas of activity to be
challenged or concerns raised between partners. It was noted that as
part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment, the Audit Commission
would consider this as part of its analysis of the effectiveness of the
partnerships. The Committee also noted that wider engagement was
required in relation to KLOE 4, Securing Engagement from the
Workforce, and it was hoped that this would form part of the Well Being
Partnership Board’s response to the findings of the review.

The Committee expressed concern at the lack of capacity in this area,
particularly in relation to corporate responsibility.

RESOLVED




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

That the action plan be reported back to the Audit Committee by the
relevant management groups of the Council and PCT.

PRAC26.

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT AND ASSURANCE STATEMENT 2007/08

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, introduced the
annual audit report and assurance statement 2007/08, and reported that
the overall audit opinion 2007/08 was that the system of internal control
in operation during the year to 31 March 2008 accorded with proper
practice and was fundamentally sound. The report outlined the basis on
which this overall assurance was given, as well as providing details of
the assurances on corporate governance and on risk management,
assurance from external inspections and assurance on the effectiveness
of internal audit.

The Chair asked if there were any questions from the Committee.

Councillor Diakides asked about the local performance measures, and
whether the statistics should be of concern to the Committee. Ms Woods
reported that, for the performance indicator for audits completed against
the planned programme, the figure for actual performance given in the
report related to final reports completed, whereas the target related to
draft reports completed. The percentage of draft reports completed
against the planned programme in fact exceeded the target. The Chief
Financial Officer, Mr Almeroth, confirmed that he was satisfied that
performance against targets was positive and should not cause the
Committee concern. Mr Almeroth reported that areas of highest risk for
the Council had been identified and were included in the external audit
and inspection plan, and that risk management systems were in place to
enable a swift and effective response to any issues arising.

While making comments on the report, the Chair highlighted to the
meeting that in order to effectively deal with this report he had, as a
matter of priority, corresponded with the Head of Audit and Risk
Management and the Chief Financial Officer in advance of the meeting
to ask how the assurance statement could be accepted by the
Committee as independent assurance as required under the
Committee’s terms of reference. This was because the assurance
statement was largely dependent on internal audit works, the Statement
of Reponsibility for which stated “works performed by internal audit
should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weakness in
internal control” and “the performance of internal audit work is not and
should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for
the application of sound management practices”. The Chair reported that
in reply he had received written confirmation from the Chief Financial
Officer and from the Head of Internal Audit that the assessment of
financial administration and control was not based solely on the findings
of Internal Audit, and copies of the emails containing this confirmation
were produced at the meeting with direction that it would be supplied to
all Committee members. On this basis, the Chair confirmed that he was
satisfied in principle with the assurance provided.




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED

i) That the content of the annual audit report and assurance
statement for 2007/08 be noted.

ii) That the annual audit report and assurance statement be
referred to the next available Full Council meeting for
information.

PRAC27.

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
revised Terms of Reference for Haringey’s Internal Audit service, which
had been updated in order to reflect that the Statement of Internal
Control had been replaced by the Annual Governance Statement. Ms
Woods confirmed that the Terms of Reference were compliant with the
CIPFA code of practice, and that in line with good practice the Terms of
Reference would be reviewed and presented on a regular basis to
ensure that they continued to be appropriate.

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED
That the revised Terms of Reference for the Internal Audit Service be

approved, as officers confirmed that internal audit work was based on
the CIPFA’s 2006 code of practice.

PRAC28.

AUDIT COMMITTEE - ANNUAL WORK PLAN

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
proposed annual work plan for the Audit Committee, which had been
one of the recommendations from the review of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee. The work plan was as comprehensive as possible, but
did not preclude the inclusion of elements of work that came up at short
notice. Details of the internal audit programme of work for the year were
covered in the annual internal audit plan and audit strategy 2008/09,
presented at the previous meeting of the Committee.

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED

That the annual work plan for 2008/09 be approved.

PRAC29.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - PROPOSED FORMAT FOR
2008/09

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented a
proposed revised reporting format for the quarterly internal audit
progress reports. The revised format responded to feedback received




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 24 JUNE 2008

during the review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee, as
members had requested information on a monthly basis, with a higher-
level quarterly summary being presented at the formal Committee
meetings. Where limited assurance was given, more detailed summaries
would be presented to the Committee as part of the quarterly report.
Members were invited to contact the Chair if they wished to ask
Directors to attend a meeting of the Committee to respond to questions.

The Chair referred to the Statement of Responsibility appended to the
report and the need to ensure that reports were compliant with all
relevant regulations, and requested that he be provided with all final
internal audit reports in full. The Chair also requested that the revised
reporting format give details of all recommendations made, not just
Priority 1 recommendations, in order to provide Committee members
with more complete information.

The Chair moved and it was:
RESOLVED

That, taking into account the comments made above, the proposed
reporting format and processes be approved and adopted from July
2008 and for the 2008/09 cycle of meeting.

It was additionally requested that the Chief Financial Officer and External
Auditors examine whether the wording of the Statement of Responsibility
by Deloitte and Touche, as appended to the report, complied with the
requirements of the appropriate CIPFA Code, and report this to the
Committee at the earliest opportunity.

PRAC30.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
There were no new items of urgent business.

NOTED

PRAC31.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee would take place on
Tuesday 22 July at 19:30 hrs at the Civic Centre, Wood Green, London
N22.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 7 Agenda ltem 7

£ GrantThornton

Report to: Audit Committee
Report of: Grant Thornton
Report Title: Update on Key audit issues

Date of meeting: 22 July 2008

Purpose
This document is an update on the accounting and business risks that we identified in
our audit plan that was presented to the Audit Committee in July 2007, and updated

in January 2008.

This document presents detail of the key issues that we are currently focussing on as
part of our audit of the financial statements.

Recommendation

We ask that Members of the Audit Committee note and approve the contents.



Page 8

Risk

Response

1. From 2007/08 onwatds the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework introduces new practice in relation to the
preparation of an annual governance statement which
will meet the requirement set out in Regulation 4(2)
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as
amended), for the production of a statement on
internal control (SIC). Therefore the production of a
separate SIC will no longer be required.

The governance statement covers all significant
corporate systems, processes and controls, spanning
the whole range of the Council's activities, including
those designed to ensure that:

e The Council's policies are implemented in
practice.

e High-quality services are delivered efficiently
and effectively.

° The Council’s values and ethical standards are
met.

° Laws and regulations are complied with
e Required processes are adhered to.

° Financial statements and other published
performance information are accurate and
reliable.

o Human, financial, environmental and other

resources are managed efficiently and effectively.

It therefore covers all the areas previously covered by
the SIC. However, it also covers performance issues
— good governance is a precondition for delivering
good services and poor service performance reflects a
failure of governance.

A draft Annual Governance Statement was provided
to the Audit Committee for review and discussion on
12 May 2008.

We will update our review to ensure that any events
that may require revision to this statement are
reflected in the final statements.

Page 2



Page 9

Risk

Response

2. The Council has a PFI contract with Haringey
Schools Setvices Limited for the maintenance and
operation of eight of the Council's secondaty schools.
The Council has received BSF funding that included
some resources for investment in existing schools
currently under the PFI contract. It was identified
that there would be issues with the implementation of
the BSF programme if this was run alongside the PFI
programme, and as a result the PFI contract was
suspended with the facilities management element
being transferred back to the Council.

There are several accounting entries that are required
as a result of the decision, not least the requirement
that as a result of the suspension the assets will come
back onto the Council's balance sheet. Other factors
that will need to be considered include ensuring that
the residual interest has been accounted for correctly
and also that prepayments made to reduce future
unitary charges have been properly accounted for.

The Council commissioned consultants to advise on
the accounting treatment and we have reviewed this
advice and have provided feedback to the Council.
We will consider in detail as part of the final audit.

We will ensure that the accounting entries have been
put through correctly within the financial statements
as part of our audit work on the final accounts.

3. There has been an increase in the deficit of the
Alexandra Park and Palace Trust as this has increased
to £3.1m from £1.8m in the previous year.

We will review the Council's position at Alexandra
Park and Palace Trust and include commentary on
this as part of our ISA 260 report to the General
Purposes Committee.

4. In 2006/07 the Council recorded a balance of
£14.8m that was categorised as 'other’ within the
Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL).
The Council has undertaken an exercise to identify
these balances and what they relate to and this has
resulted in a number of changes to the 2006/07
comparative figures.

We have reviewed the entries that have been
undertaken in respect of the 'othet' balances figutre
within the STRGL and have discussed these with the
finance team. We will ensure these are correctly put
through within the 2007/08 financial statements as
part of our audit work.

5. For 2007/08 local authorities will have to adopt the
presentation and accounting requirements for
financial instruments of FRS 25, 26 and 29. The
presentation requirements are more onerous than in
prior years, with more detail to be disclosed in the
Statement of Accounts. The accounting requirements
are complex and cover a wide range of entries in the
financial statements, potentially all accounts balances
except for leases (although if there are derivative
instruments embedded in leases these are captured by
these standards), pensions and interests in group
entities.

We will review the Council's accounts disclosures
against the CIPFA disclosure checklist to gain audit
assurance over the completeness of the Council's
disclosures.

We will review accounts balances to ensure that the
Council's processes for identifying financial
instruments are adequate and that these have been
accounted for in accordance with the SoRP.

Page 3



Page 10

Risk

Response

6.2007/08 is the first year in which a UK GAAP
compliant revaluation reserve is to be incorporated
into the accounts of local Councils. We further note
that the opening balance needs to be nil to comply
with CIPFA guidance.

We will review the entries in the revaluation reserve
to ensure that the entries comply with the provisions
of the 2007 local government SoRP.

7. Councils have been in receipt of local area
agreement funding, and there is a risk that the
Council will not account for this income, and other
similar types of income appropriately, especially
where the income is performance-related.

We will review income relating to the local area
agreement and other similar schemes to ensure that
this income is accounted for in accordance with the
2007 local government SoRP.

8. Following the settlement in 2005 of the North
Cumbria Acute NHS Trust case, and the associated
publicity, an increasing number of equal pay claims
are now being made both within the NHS and local
government.

Local authorities face potential liabilities arising from
the single status Implementation Agreement, which
forms part of the 2004 Local Government Services
Pay Agreement. We understand that the Council has
made a provision in the financial statements to cover
the ongoing costs in 2007/08.

We will review this matter with the Council's HR staff
to identify whether or not any claims have been made
in this area.

We will review the provision made in the accounts for
compliance against Financial Reporting Standard
No.12.

9. There were several recommendations made in
relation to the audit of the financial statements for
2006/07 by the previous auditors in the report issued
in February 2008.

We will follow up these recommendations during our
2007/08 audit work and report on the progress of
these within our ISA 260.

Page 4



Page 11 Agenda Item 8

@ HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 22" July 2008

Report title: Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of: The Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefits
and Local Taxation Service from the 1% April 2008 — 30" June 2008. .

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried out by the
Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity.

Report authorised by:
Gerald Almeroth
Chief Financial Officer

(Signature)

Contact Officer: Tim Fisher
Designation : Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation
Telephone: (020-8489-1954)

3. Executive Summary - The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain
and further develop an effective approach to counter — benefit fraud activity. It has
achieved 24 successful sanctions against those found to be committing benefit fraud in
the first quarter of 2008/09

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 —

The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section, 10 Station Rd,
Wood Green. The BFI Report was published in October 2007 and is available on the
internet under www.bfi.gov.uk




6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 12
BACKGROUND

Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes in
respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Fraud staff are
empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

Following last years inspection by the Benefit Fraud Inspectorate the Benefits
and Local Taxation Service have reviewed and amended the Prosecution
Policy relating to counter benefit fraud and produced a Counter Benefit Fraud
Strategy.

The Anti — Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and
Council Tax Benefit was presented to Audit Committee on the 12" May 2008.
It was resolved at this meeting that there should be further consultation with
Members. Consequently, the matter was referred to CAB who endorsed the
strategy for approval by the Audit Committee.

A separate report to the Audit Committee on the Anti — Fraud and Corruption
Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit has been
prepared for the meeting of the 22" July 2008.

COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

Performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the first quarter of 2008/09 is
summarised in table 1.

Successful outcomes for 15t quarter 2008/09

Sanction Type Number Target Status
Issued
Caution 13 Accepted
Admin Penalty 7 Accepted
Prosecution 4 Guilty
Total 24 31
Table 1

A more detailed breakdown of cases forwarded for prosecution and sanction is
included in appendix 1 of this report. This gives details of the type of fraud
discovered. Each decision to prosecute or administer a sanction is taken in
accordance with the Sanctions Policy. This takes a range of factors into
account when determining what appropriate sanction to apply, particularly the
degree of planned dishonesty involved.

The Benefits and Local Taxation Service has set an annual target for of 126
sanctions for 2008/09. This is the same target for last year and allows for a
review of the Fraud Investigation Teams work plan for 2008/09 taking into
account the requirements of the new Corporate Area Assessment and the
Audit Commissions Key Lines of Enquiry.



Page 13

Overpaid Housing Benefit

7.4

7.5

7.6

To date the counter fraud activity has identified £229,844 in overpaid benefit
and a further £4,610 in Administrative Penalties. Central government subsidy
paid in relation to overpayments is at a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or 40%.
Consequently, it can be estimated that £91,937 has been generated in
subsidy, this effectively results in a 60% shortfall against benefit expenditure.

The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to
recover overpaid Housing Benefit. Currently, recovery performance in relation
to all in-year created overpayments is approx 55%. Based on this figure

the potential recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit arising through fraud could
amount to £126,414.

When combining subsidy paid, plus recovered overpayments for the year it is
estimated that counter fraud activity could recover in the region of £218,351.

w3



8G°LLLL3 82'5¢8'6Y3 )
0003 uopney 2 L¥63 80-Aen-¢ | (14N) yore ejeq )0E
0003 ~ pajnossold. “lende - Buines SINGH 6. 721 '823 8o-uer-1g (swau) yoley ejeg.  OHOL00T
92'¢80'L3 Ayeusd uiwpy Buiwie|D @ BUIOM ¥5'219'C3 80-BIN-Gz  (swaqu) yolew eled.  HOL00Z
00°03 uognen leyde) patejospun 08'GLL 63 80-994-6L  (swaqy) yojley eleg 0401002
0003 uonnen Buiwie|D 3 BUOM 67°L8L 3 80-leN-lE dMd  VE6sst
0003 uonned (%001) Aemy auo9 ajuyaqg ¥9°L0€ L3 80-uer-gz V18WO  V9./8G)1
0003 uoynen PaIEOSQ JOU SNIEIS JUSPNIS BE'GY9'L3 804eN-eL wes] ueg  VeEysSL
. Ajeusd uipy IQN 8sjed/sda( UoN patejoapun o0 7623 ; _ (swqu) yolew ejeq v9651

800z aunp

£1'6£8'23 68'S.S'L0L3

0003 penoasold. pnesd [eussju] Zy'196'GL3 B lewsjul  Mv0.00€
< Lv'/883 . Ryeusd uwpy (%001) kemy auo9 ajuyeq 2’85623 ; M6  (swqu)yoleweleq  voevee
~— 8¥'86¥3 Ajjeusd uiwpy sbujuieg pasejpapun - buines SINGH 09'199'L3 80-uer-0g¢  (swaqy) ysleweleg 4101002
) 0003 uoinen [eydeD pasejodpun L£'68Z'6C3 80JeN-6L  (swqu) yoley eled.  ©40L00Z
o 8L°€SY'L3 Ayjeusd uiwpy pa.ejoa(] jou SNJelS JUSPNIS #6618 v3 80-1eN-p) and  v¥S65L
nnra 0003 uonnen leyde patejospun 8/'991 ‘zv3 /0-des-/0 ‘wes| usg VZ/8G1

0003 uogney sbuiuies g [eyded paiejospun vi'Ges ' v3 £0-unr-g0 ~ wes] usg  V9E95)

0003 pajnoesold [eyden/sbuines pasepspun 0L 'L9E'v3 @Ss sems_ ejed 40£951

800z Aew
69°6653 68°05€°0€3 .
0003 uogney IGN @sed/sdaq UON palejospun /8'060°L3 8099461 V1440  8v0.00€
R Ayeusd ulwpy sypai xe| - Buines SINGH 29'SYEF 80-uer-gz  (swqu) YJleW Bled.  Mr0L00Z
0003 uopnen [eyde - Buines SINGH 28 693 80-uer-Gz  (swaqu) yolew e A90L00Z
0003 uogne) sbuiuie3 pasejoepun - Buines SINGH 60°GLY'S3 g0-uer-gz  (swau) yolew eled  d404002
165673 Ryeuad uiwpy lende - Buines SWEH 69°059'13  80-994-€l (swqu) yolew eled 1004002
0003 _ uogney Buiwier3 3 Buniiom 00°03 __80-uer-Gz oland  V606SH
0003 __pajnossold (%001) Buntiom Juyd -1eysebo L Buin 0v'221'023 L0-uer-zz onand  vs0.S)
0003 uonnen Buiwier) g Buntom 0v°10€°L3 L0-Uer-gz Jopuyyled  B/BGG)

1 Xipuaddy

8002 1udy

60/8002 | Jopenb Buunp panossold 1o pauoioues sased Jo sjieleQ




Page 15 Agenda Item 9

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N O-]

On 22" July 2007

A udit Committee

Report Title: Anti — Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and
Council Tax Benefit Fraud ‘

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform Members of the requirement to adopt an Anti — Fraud and Corruption
Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit and to enable this to
proceed to Audit Committee for approval

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 This strategy paper is in line with the Council and DWP's efforts to combat fraudulent
claims. It also complies with the recommendations of the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate
as well as that of the Audit Commission on the CPA outcomes.

| commend the strategy for adoption.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That Members of the Audit Committee agree the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit

Report Authorised by: Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officelg’; .

p—g

Contact Officer: Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation
020 8489 1954

4. Head of Legal Services Comments

4.1 The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy has been put before the Audit
Committee on the 12" of May 2008 and their comments, contained within this report,




Page 16

and the detailed report itself, contains all the information required for members to
make an informed decision as to whether or not to approve the proposed Strategy. It
was recommended by the Audit Committee that the members be informed and
consulted before the implementation of this Strategy. The Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Strategy, when read in conjunction with the Council’s Sanctions Policy, referred to in
this Strategy, outline the council’s clear intent and the process and procedures
which will be followed in the tackling of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit
fraud within the borough. By having the Strategy in place and available to members
of the public the Council can be seen to be providing greater transparency of its
processes and decision making.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

5.1 The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section, 10
Station Rd, Wood Green. The BFI Report was published in October 2007 and is
available on the internet under www.bfi.gov.uk

6. Strategic Implications

6.1 Member endorsement is sought for the attached Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit, appendix 1. This
follows the inspection by the Department for Work and Pensions’ Benefit Fraud
Inspectorate (BFI) of the Council’s Benefits and Local Taxation Services security
measures.

6.2 In their report of October 2007 the BFI stated that ‘overall, the Council had effective
measures in place to deal with benefit fraud’. However, they felt that the Council’s
current anti fraud strategy did not include tackling benefit fraud and therefore ‘did
not let the public know that the Council is committed to tackling benefit fraud..’.

6.3 The BFI recommended that the Council include within the Corporate Anti-Fraud and
Corruption Strategy a specific strategy relating to tackling Housing Benefit and
Council Tax Benefit fraud. The BFI further recommended that the strategy received
the endorsement of members.

6.4 The Anti- Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit was presented to members of the Audit Committee on the 12" May
2008. Members resolved that there should be wider member consultation before
approval could be given.

6.5 On the 10" July 2008 the strategy was sent to CAB for comments where it was
endorsed for approval by the Audit Committee.

6.6 The key points to note when considering endorsement of the Anti — Fraud and
Corruption Strategy relating to Benefit Fraud are —
e The development of this strategy is a specific recommendation of the
Benefits Fraud Inspectorate
e The strategy is a contribution to the Council's existing Corporate Anti-Fraud
and Corruption Strategy

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2



Page 17

* The Housing Benefit regulations clearly state from when and who
overpayments of benefit can be recovered. The Council through the
operation of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service has procedures based
on these regulations which are subject to audit and inspection.

e The role of the Council's Fraud Investigation Team is to tackle criminal
activity in respect of public funds and to take appropriate action against
those who act dishonestly to obtain benefits to which they are not entitled. It
also places an obligation on the council to prevent fraud and raise
awareness amongst benefit claimants that they must report changes in their
circumstances.

e Due to the relationship counter benefit fraud activity has with national
priorities the strategy will require periodic review to ensure that these meet
local and national priorities relating to the delivery of counter benefit fraud
activities

e The Audit Commissions Corporate Area Assessment contains a set of Key
Lines of Enquiry (KLOE) relating to benefits administration. Under KLOE 2.7
— ‘Is the service effective in meeting local regional and national objectives?’
is the requirement for local authorities to have in place and maintain a
‘counter fraud and prosecution strategy’.

6.7 The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit describes the key measures and activities undertaken by the Council’s
Benefits and Local Taxation Service. The strategy also seeks to provide the
necessary assurance that the Council has effective procedures in place to meet the
requirements expected of it by both the Audit Commission and the Department for
Work and Pensions.

6.8 This strategy is part of a range of strategies and procedures that the Benefits and
Local Taxation Service has in place to ensure the effective administration of
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

6.9 In addition to maintaining counter fraud activity the Council’s Benefits and Local
Taxation Service has set out a range of other activities designed to enhance and
improve on the delivery benefits to Haringey residents. These include —

» Development of pro-active activities to support benefit take-up amongst
older people and the low paid and reduce worklessness

e Development of a customer consultation strategy

o Performance Improvement strategies to ensure that customers receive
the right benefit and the right time as measured by the two new national
performance indicators NI 180 and NI 181

¢ Development of a quality improvement strategy

7. Financial Implications

7.1 The Council must take reasonable steps to protect public funds and ensure that
there is public confidence in the services that it provides. As such the Council must
ensure that it properly identifies overpayments of Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Benefit and where the benefit regulations allow recovers overpayments from those
to whom they have been paid.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 18

7.2 The table, below, shows the levels of overpayments by type against the total benefit
expenditure for 2006/07 and 2007/08. Whilst overpayments remain relatively low in
comparison with total expenditure they do represent significant amounts of public
money.

7.3 To date the Council has been successful in keeping the level of Council Error
overpayments within the limits to enable it to qualify for 100% central government
subsidy. However, both Claimant Error and Fraud overpayments attract 40%
subsidy resulting in 60% of their cost being met from general funds. To reduce the
burden on the Council Tax payer the Council should seek to maintain effective
policies and strategies to reduce overpayments and maximise recovery where they

do occur.
2006/07
Total benefit expenditure - £247,473,855
Council Error | Claimant Error | Fraud Total
649,395 6,437,434 763,104 7,849,933
0.26% 2.60% 0.31% 3.17%
2007/08
Total benefit expenditure - £253,390,952
Council Error | Claimant Error | Fraud Total
608,261 4,066,944 1,033,088 5,708,293
0.24% 1.61% 0.41% 2.25%

8. Equalities Implications

8.1 The Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit clearly sets out the Council’'s position with regard to benefit fraud
ensuring a clarity of purpose.

8.2 The Equalities Team has been consulted in the preparation of this report and agree
that the strategy does not contain any equalities implications that are likely to
adversely impact on specific community groups or raise issues of unfairness in
terms of service delivery

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 19

Anti —Fraud and Corruption Strategy — relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit

1. Statement of Intent

1.1 Haringey Council (“The Council’) is responsible for administering public
funds. The Benefits and Local Taxation Service has a key role in this
function and must ensure that the right benefits go to the right people in
accordance with their entitlement.

1.2 Our responsibility for administering Housing and Council Tax Benefits
includes a duty to ensure that the system is not open to abuse by any
person or group.

1.3 The Council will ensure that effective policies and procedures are
implemented to prevent and detect benefit fraud either internally or
externally and we place a high regard on maintaining confidence in our
Service and the benefit system as a whole.

1.4 The Council will use the criminal and civil powers available to it to take
action against those who have committed benefit fraud. Prosecutions
may either be undertaken by the Council through its own legal service or
in partnership with the Department for Works and Pensions Solicitors
Office or the Crown Prosecution Service.

2. Measures we will take to tackle benefit fraud

1. We will employ a dedicated team to investigate suspected benefit fraud

2. We will have a published Sanctions Policy

3. We will inform our customers of their responsibility to tell us about any
changes in their circumstances and the standards of evidence that they
must provide

4. We will have clear means by which members of the public can refer
cases of suspected benefit fraud to us

5. We will participate in data matching schemes, including the National
Fraud Initiative and the Housing Benefit Matching Service

6. Benefits and Local Taxation staff and any other staff involved in
benefits administration will be expected to attend periodic fraud
awareness training

7. We will work with other organisations such as other local authorities,
Police and the Department for Work and Pensions on joint
investigations

8. We will publicise successful prosecutions in the local media

3. Who is affected by this strategy
3.1 This strategy will be applied to anyone who applies for Housing Benefit
and, or Council Tax Benefit, or anyone who assists a person to make a

claim for benefit which they know is false or dishonest.

3.2 It will also apply to any person who receives payments of Housing Benefit



Page 20

and, or Council Tax Benefit, either in the capacity of claimant, or partner of
the claimant, appointed representative, landlord or managing agent or
employee of the Council where they are found to be complicit in the
commission of an offence.

4. Deterring benefit fraud

4.1 The Council recognises that the vast majority of people who claim
Housing Benefit and, or Council Tax Benefit are completely honest.

4.2 However, in order to safeguard public funds it will maintain a level of
standards necessary to prevent fraud from entering the benefits system
when new claims for benefit are made.

4.3 The Council also recognises that no system is foolproof and will therefore
periodically request anyone in receipt of benefit to confirm their details. It
will also participate in regular data-matching exercises with other
organisations.

4.4 Any person found to be engaged in benefit fraud will be subject to the
Council’s Sanctions Policy. The Council will also make use of the full
range of available opportunities to publicise the details of anyone found
guilty of benefit fraud. In this way the Council will seek to increase fraud
awareness amongst the community and the consequences of acting
dishonestly.

5. Data Protection Act and other relevant legislation

5.1 Those responsible for investigating benefit fraud will be required to comply
at all times with the relevant legislation relating to the investigation of
criminal offences. Investigators will also be required to obtain the relevant
professional qualifications to ensure that they understand the legislation
applying to counter fraud activity and act with integrity at all times.

5.2 The Council is registered under the Data Protection Act 1998 “the Act” for
‘the purposes of preventing and detecting crime, the prosecution of
offenders and the collection of any tax’.

5.3 Where appropriate the Council will use section 29 of “the act” to exempt
those organisation, from the provisions of “the Act”, who may have
information which will help in the prevention and detection of crime. The
appropriate data disclosure forms will be used at all time and a register of
disclosures maintained to audit this activity.

5.4 The Council will require Investigators to work within the guidelines of the:

The Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996
The Human Rights Act 2000

LN =



Page 21

5. The Social Security Administration and Fraud Acts 1992 - 2008

6. Staff integrity

6.1 Through it's existing recruitment and appointment procedure the Council
will always seek to maintain the highest standards when appointing staff
to the Benefits and Local Taxation Service. In addition to this the vetting
of successful candidates will take place to ensure benefit is not being
wrongly claimed.

6.2 All Benefits and Local Taxation staff are required to work within the
Council’s general code of conduct. A supplementary code (under
development) will also apply to Benefits and Local Taxation to include
guidance to staff on declarations regarding the processing of their own, a
relatives or close family friends benefit claim. There will also be guidance
relating to staff who are a landlord or who have relatives or close family
friends who are a landlord.

6.3 Any member of Council staff found to be involved in benefit fraud, whether
relating to the Council or any other local authority or public body will be
subject to the requirements of this strategy and where appropriate the
Council’s disciplinary procedures.

7. Referral of benefit fraud

7.1 The Council will have an open referral policy; any person who suspects
benefit fraud can refer their suspicion personally or anonymously to the
Council's Benefits Fraud Investigation Team.

e In writing to - Benefits Fraud Investigation Team, PO Box 22727,
Wood Green, London, N22 7WS

e Fraudwatch Telephone Hotline (24 hours/ 7 days a week) 0500 500
777

e Benefit Fraud report line (9.00 — 5.00 Mon-Fri) 020 8489 2868

e Councils website - www.haringey.gov.uk/benefits

e E-mail - benefit.fraud@haringey.gov.uk

7.2 The Council’s Fraud Investigation Team will investigate those cases
where there is a reasonable suspicion, based on the available evidence,
that fraud is taking place.

7.3 Investigations undertaken by the Council’s Fraud Investigation Team are
confidential. Officers are unable to engage with third parties in discussion
about the conduct and nature of their investigations.



Page 22

8. Accountability

8.1 Operational responsibility for the counter benefit fraud function rests with
the Head of Benefits and Local Taxation Service. As with any council
service the conduct of the Fraud Investigations Team is covered by the
Council’s Complaints Procedure.

8.2 To ensure that the Council is maintaining effective measures to counter
benefit fraud performance will be reported to elected members through the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. These reports will be available on
request to members of the public.



Page 23 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o_]

Audit Committee On 22 July 2008

Report Title: Anti-fraud and corruption strategy

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1To advise the Audit Committee of the revised Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption
Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and Whistle-blowing Policy.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Audit Committee approves the revised Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption
Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and Whistle-blowing Policy.

2.2 That the Audit Committee approves the publication of the revised documents on the
Council’'s website and intranet site.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.




Page 24

4. Background

4.1 As part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 2006
Code of Practice, and the requirements of the Council’s Whistle-blowing policy,
Haringey needs to ensure that there are appropriate processes in place for the
reporting and investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption.

4.2The Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) includes the requirements to have
appropriate arrangements in place which are designed to promote and ensure probity.
It is therefore important to ensure that the Council can demonstrate compliance with
the CPA and best practice requirements.

4.3In addition, the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate, as part of their inspection in 2007,
recommended that the Council produce a separate anti-fraud strategy specifically in
relation to Housing Benefits work.

4.4An Anti-fraud Strategy provides the framework within which all employees and
Councillors should operate. Alongside the anti-fraud strategy, a fraud response plan
sets out how employees, members of the public and Councillors can make their
concerns known and how the Council will deal with any allegations made.

4.5 The Council is committed to reducing the potential for fraud and corruption to the
lowest possible level. The revised Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy is a key
document in informing people of the council’s position on fraud and corruption and its
intention to deal with any issues in a firm, but responsible way.

5. The Anti-fraud Strategy

5.1The Council has an Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy which is published on the
Haringey website and intranet site, together with details of contact phone numbers for
reporting suspected instances of fraud and corruption.

5.2 Although the policy statement was written some time ago (2005), it has been kept
under review on an annual basis. During 2008/09, Internal Audit and the Human
Resource division again reviewed the anti-fraud and corruption strategy, together with
the Council’s whistle-blowing policy and made some minor amendments to these
documents in order to reflect operational changes and reporting structures.

5.3 The revised anti-fraud strategy and fraud response plan contains the same, or similar
information as previously published. However, the updated version has been re-written
to ensure that the information contained within it is completely up to date and is also
more easily understandable and accessible to the widest possible range of readers.
This is has been done in line with the Council’s website guidelines for accessibility.

5.4 The revised strategy and fraud response plan follows CIPFA’s best practice model. The
updated Whistle-blowing policy conforms to the best practice guidance from Public
Concern at Work, the independent charitable organisation which advises on whistle-
blowing and governance matters.

Page 2 of 3



Page 25

5.5Included with the council’s anti-fraud strategy, as a separate appendix, will be the
Housing Benefit anti-fraud strategy. The Housing Benefit anti-fraud strategy is
presented separately to this Committee for approval, but will form part of the council’s
overall consistent approach to reducing the risk of fraud and will be published as an
appendix to the council’s overall anti-fraud strategy.

5.6The Council’s anti-fraud strategy and fraud response plan, together with the whistle-
blowing policy, give guidance to employees and members of the public on what we
want to know about in relation to fraud and corruption, what people should do if they
suspect fraud and corruption and how the Council will deal with any allegations made.

6. Audit Committee Responsibilities

6.1The purpose of the Audit Committee is ‘to provide independent assurance of the
adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control environment’.

6.2 Part of the Audit Committee’s terms of reference includes Corporate Governance and
the Regulatory Framework. Within this broad area, specific reference is made that the
Committee ‘monitor Council policies on Whistle-blowing and Anti-fraud and
Corruption’

6.3 To fulfil part of the Committee’s responsibilities, the updated anti-fraud and corruption
strategy and whistle-blowing policy is presented for review and approval.

6.41n addition, in order that the Audit Committee is able to fulfil its monitoring role, the
quarterly internal audit progress reports include details of all referrals via the whistle-
blowing policy and email and telephone reporting facility. The quarterly reports also
contain details of all disciplinary investigations which involve financial irregularities and
details of any attempts to fraudulently alter and cash the Council’s cheques.

Page 30of 3



Page 26

Appendix A
Haringey Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy

Contents

Why we have an anti-fraud strategy

Our written rules

How we expect our Councillors and employees to behave
Preventing fraud and corruption

Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption
Training and raising awareness

Our commitment

Appendix 1 - Fraud Response Plan

Appendix 2 — Whistle-blowing Policy

Appendix 3 - Housing Benefit Anti-fraud policy

NO G WD

If you have any concerns about fraud or corruption, please call Fraudwatch on
Freephone 0500 500 777.

You can also click on the following link to send an email to
fraudcall@Haringey.gov.uk.

We will take your concerns seriously and ensure that we treat them in the
strictest confidence.

1. Why we have an anti-fraud strategy

1.1 Haringey Council employs approximately 9,000 staff and has a net budget
of over £400 million. We provide a wide range of services to individuals,
households, the voluntary sector and many other private and public sector
organisations.

1.2 The Council aims to provide excellent services to all its users. However, the
size and nature of our services, like any other large organisation, means
that there is a risk of loss due to fraud and corruption, both from within the
Council and outside it.

1.3 This anti-fraud and corruption strategy is intended to address any
instances where fraud or corruption are suspected. The definition of Fraud
is based on the Fraud Act 2006 which introduced three specific offences of
fraud: fraud by false representation; fraud by failing to disclose information;
and fraud by abuse of position. Corruption is defined as "the offering,
giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward, which may
influence the action of any person". Our Fraud Response Plan, which is
attached to this strategy (Appendix 1), gives some examples of fraud and
corruption.

1.4 The key message we want to publicise is that we expect all Councillors,
employees, consultants, contractors, and service users, to be honest, and
to give us any help, information and support we need to deal with fraud



Page 27

Appendix A

and corruption.

1.5 We are committed to making sure that the opportunity for fraud and
corruption is reduced as much as possible. Where the possibility of fraud,
or corruption exist or is identified, we will respond promptly, deal with it
firmly and in line with the procedures outlined in this strategy.

1.6 An important part of this approach is having an anti-fraud and corruption
strategy, which we will use to advise and guide Councillors and employees
on our approach to the serious issues of fraud and corruption. This
strategy is written for the benefit of employees, Councillors and members
of the public. Organisations and businesses dealing with the Council are
also expected to act honestly. It is designed to help everyone to
understand their roles and responsibilities in relation to preventing and
reporting fraud and corruption, as well as aiming to ensure that everyone is
treated consistently and fairly.

1.7 The anti-fraud and corruption strategy is part of the Council’s overall
approach to minimising the risk of fraud. The Council also participates in
the national data matching process, the National Fraud Initiative (NFI),
which uses information from organisations across the country to prevent
and detect fraud. The Council also has a separate Housing Benefit anti-
fraud strategy, but this forms part of the council’s overall approach to
reducing the risk of fraud and is published as Appendix 3 to the council’s
overall anti-fraud strategy.

1.8 The strategy set out in this document covers the following areas:
Our written rules

How we expect our Councillors and employees to behave
Preventing fraud and corruption

Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption

Training

2. Our written rules

2.1 We have a number of procedures and rules to make sure that how we work
and manage our finances on a day to day basis is properly controlled.
These procedures are essential to ensure the possibility of fraud and
corruption is minimised. It is important that all Councillors and employees
know about them, and understand their role in complying with them.

2.2 The most important procedures which relate to all employees and
Councillors are:
e Council Constitution.
Contract Standing Orders.
Financial Procedure Rules.
Code of Conduct for Employees.
Code of Conduct for Councillors.



Page 28

Appendix A

2.3 Individual departments have also introduced their own measures, in
addition to the above list. These are designed specifically to manage their
services and may not relate to any other part of the Council. Examples may
include working manuals, guidance notes and operating procedures.

2.4 Directors must make sure that all employees have access to both the
procedures which relate to everyone and to any which relate specifically to
their services. All employees should receive suitable training in the use of
these procedures.

2.5 Councillors and employees are responsible for making sure that they read
and understand the rules and regulations that apply to them, and act in line
with them.

2.6 If anyone breaks these rules and regulations we may take formal action

against them. This may ultimately include ending their employment with the
Council, in respect of employees, and referral to the Standards Committee,
in respect of Councillors. It is the responsibility of the Monitoring Officer (in
Haringey, this is the Head of Legal Services) to report matters to the
Standards Committee.

3. How we expect Councillors and employees to behave

3.1 We expect all individuals, groups and organisations who receive services
from, or provide services on behalf of the Council to be honest in their
dealings with us and our clients and customers. We expect all our
Councillors and employees, including temporary and agency employees, to
lead by example in these matters.

3.2 The Council has Codes of Conduct for Councillors and employees and
these set out an approach to work that is both honest and fair. Councillors
and employees must act in line with these Codes at all times. The council
also issues regular reminders to all employees explaining the Council’s
view on fraud and corruption and of their responsibilities under the Code of
Conduct and the Council’s Constitution.

3.3 We feel our Councillors and employees have an important part to play in
dealing with fraud and corruption. Dishonesty and fraud harms the Council
and the reputation of its employees. Our Constitution states that our
employees and Councillors must inform us if they suspect any case of
fraud or corruption.

3.4 The Council’s Constitution also describes how the Head of Audit and Risk
Management is entitled to have unrestricted access to any part of the
Council, including its buildings, records, documents, items of equipment
and members of staff. The Head of Audit and Risk Management can also
report matters to the police, if this is appropriate.



Page 29

Appendix A

3.5 We will deal with all information fairly and confidentially. We will try, as far
as possible, not to reveal the names of the people who gave us the
information. Our fraud response plan attached at Appendix 1 gives more
advice on this issue for employees and Section 5 of this strategy details
how people can report any suspected cases of fraud or corruption.

3.6 We expect our Directors and Assistant Chief Executives to deal firmly and
quickly with anyone who is responsible for fraud or corruption. The Head of
Audit and Risk Management, in consultation with the relevant Director, or
Assistant Chief Executive may refer matters to the police if any criminal
activity is suspected, or has taken place.

3.7 We will treat all concerns raised in good faith seriously. We must ensure
that any investigation process is not misused and therefore any abuse,
such as raising unfounded or malicious allegations, will be dealt with as a
disciplinary matter.

4. Preventing fraud and corruption

4.1 We believe that if we are to eliminate fraud and corruption, we must
prevent it from happening in the first place. It is essential that we have
clear rules and procedures that all Councillors, employees, consultants
and contractors understand and can work within. These include the
main procedures which apply to all Councillors and employees, and
these are set out in section 2 of this strategy. The following section sets
out what we as a Council must do, as part of our regular working
arrangements, to reduce the risk of fraud and corruption.

4.2 We must regularly review and update our written rules to ensure that
they keep up to date with the latest government legislation.

4.3 Directors and Assistant Chief Executives must make sure that suitable
levels of controls are included in working procedures, especially
financial procedures. It is important that employees’ duties are
organised so that no one person can carry out a complete transaction
without some form of checking process being built into the system.

4.4 We must follow our procedures when employing, or considering
employing, new staff. We must undertake all relevant checks required
by law, including Police and Criminal Records Bureau checks and our
own internal procedures, including previous employment, qualification
and reference checks.

4.5 We are committed to working and co-operating with other organisations
to prevent organised fraud and corruption. Wherever possible, we will
be prepared to help and exchange information with other Councils and
organisations to deal with fraud. We will only share information in line



4.6

4.7

Page 30

Appendix A

with the relevant Data Protection legislation.

We have confidential facilities available for people to give us information
that may prevent fraud and corruption. These include dedicated
telephone lines for fraud, including Housing Benefit fraud and the email
reporting facility, which members of the public can use to give us
information about any concerns they may have.

We will make sure that full details of reporting facilities are widely
published to the public, Councillors and employees, and that all
information we receive in this way is investigated and dealt with quickly
and in line with our procedures.

5. Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

You should read this section with our fraud response plan which is
shown at Appendix 1.

Under our Code of Conduct and Council Constitution, employees must
report any suspected cases of fraud and corruption to the appropriate
manager, or, if necessary, directly to the Head of Audit and Risk
Management. Reporting cases in this way is essential to the anti-fraud
and corruption strategy and makes sure that:
e Suspected cases of fraud and corruption are investigated
properly;
e the fraud response plan is carried out properly;
e there is a standard process for dealing with all suspected cases of
fraud and corruption; and
e people and our interests are protected.

The Council's Whistleblowing Policy, which is shown at Appendix 2, is
intended to encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns.
By law, employees reporting concerns in this way have certain rights.
These are set out in the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management will work with Directors,
Assistant Chief Executives and the Head of Human Resources to decide
how the allegations made will be investigated. This will include referring
cases to the police where necessary. We will prosecute offenders and
we will carry out our disciplinary procedures where appropriate. We will
ensure that any internal proceedings do not prejudice any criminal case.

In cases relating to Housing Benefits and Council Tax Fraud, the action
taken will follow the policies and procedures laid down by the Benefits
and Local Taxation division.



Page 31

Appendix A

6. Training and raising awareness

6.1 We understand that the key to introducing a successful anti-fraud and
corruption strategy and making sure it continues to apply will depend on
effective training and making sure that everyone is aware of their
responsibilities.

6.2 We support the idea of providing training for employees who are
involved in, or who manage, systems. We will make sure that their
responsibilities and duties are regularly reviewed and employees are
reminded of these on a regular basis.

6.3 We are also committed to training and developing our employees who
are involved in investigating fraud and corruption. We will continue to
provide suitable training so that their work is carried out in line with any
legal requirements and our own written rules.

6.4 In addition, we need to ensure that everyone, including Councillors and
employees, is aware of the proper procedures and processes they can
use to report and respond to any suspected case of fraud. The
publication of this strategy and regular reminders to employees and
Councillors of their responsibilities will assist us in raising and
maintaining awareness.

7. Our commitment

7.1 We are committed to tackling fraud and corruption whenever it
happens. Our response will be effective and organised and will rely on
the principles set out in this strategy.

7.2 We will continue to review our rules and procedures and will make sure
that this strategy document is regularly reviewed to keep it up to date
and in line with our written rules.

Audit & Risk Management
July 2008



Page 32

Appendix 1
Haringey Fraud Response Plan

1. Why we have a Fraud Response Plan

1.1 Haringey Council is committed to developing a culture of honesty and zero
tolerance to fraud and corruption.

1.2 In line with that commitment, the Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy outlines how
we aim to prevent, investigate and report on fraud and corruption.

1.3 This Fraud Response Plan supports the Council’s approach by setting out the
ways in which employees, or members of the public can make their concerns
known about suspected fraud or corruption. It also outlines how the Council
will deal with such instances.

2. What we want to know about

2.1 This Fraud Response Plan is intended to be implemented where concerns
about fraud or corruption have been raised.

The definition of Fraud is based on the Fraud Act 2006 which introduced
three specific offences of fraud: fraud by false representation; fraud by failing
to disclose information; and fraud by abuse of position.

Corruption is defined as: ;
"The offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward,
which may influence the action of any person".

2.2 Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of other procedures, e.g.
grievances about an employee’s own employment, mistreatment of
vulnerable clients, or acts of discrimination, will usually be referred to the
relevant department and dealt with under those procedures.

2.3 Fraudulent or corrupt acts may include:
e Where a process or system is likely to be abused by either employees or
public, e.g. allocation of housing or other accommodation
¢ Where individuals or companies have fraudulently obtained money from
the Council, e.g. by submitting invalid invoices, or Housing Benefit fraud
e Where Council equipment is used for personal use, e.g. personal use of
Council vehicles
» Where there is a misuse of resources, e.g. theft of building materials
e Activities undertaken by officers of the Council which may be illegal, or
against the Council’s Constitution or policies, e.g. receiving gifts or
hospitality
2.4 This above list cannot cover every instance of fraud or corruption. If you have
any questions, please contact the Head of Audit and Risk Management for
further advice and guidance (Tel: 020 8489 3768).



Page 33

Appendix 1
3. How we protect those people who raise concerns

3.1 Confidentiality
We will try to protect a person’s identity when he or she raises a concern and
does not want their name to be revealed. However, in some cases, the
investigation process itself may reveal the source of the information. Also, the
person may be required to make a statement either as part of the
investigation process, or to provide evidence for any disciplinary hearing, or
criminal prosecution.

3.2 Harassment or Bullying
We understand that reporting any concerns may be a difficult decision to
make, especially if the individual is worried about suffering harassment or
bullying from those responsible for carrying out the fraud or corruption. We
will not tolerate harassment or bullying and our disciplinary procedures and
our policy on harassment and bullying support this. We will take action to
protect those who raise a concern in good faith.

3.3 Anonymous Allegations
We would always encourage people come forward to discuss their concerns
with us directly. Concerns raised anonymously may be much less convincing,
but, depending on the seriousness of the issues raised and the amount of
information provided, we will still consider investigating the concern further.
However, unless we are able to confirm the allegation from other sources, we
may not be able to undertake a full investigation.

3.4 Untrue Allegations
A concern may be raised in good faith by some-one, but it is not found to be
the case by the subsequent investigation. No action will be taken against the
person who raised the original concern. However, if people make allegations
they know to be untrue, we may consider taking further action against those
individuals making the allegations.

4. What should an employee do if they suspect fraud or corruption?

4.1 Employees are often the first to realise when things may be going wrong, or
fraud and corruption may be taking place. However, they may feel that they
would not be supported by colleagues or managers, if they raised their
concerns, or they may even be afraid of being harassed or bullied. In these
circumstances, an individual may feel it would be easier to ignore their
concerns, rather than report it.

4.2 The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is intended to encourage and enable
employees to raise concerns within the Council, rather than overlooking a
problem. The policy applies to all Haringey employees, staff of Council
contractors, agency staff and trainees.

4.3 This policy has been discussed with the relevant Trade Unions and



4.4

4.5

4.6

Page 34

Appendix 1
professional organisations and has their support. A full copy of the
Whistleblowing Policy is attached to the Anti-fraud and corruption strategy,
and on the Council’s intranet site (Harinet), or can be obtained from your
Personnel Section, or your Trade Union Representative.

If an employee suspects fraud, they should raise their concern with their line
manager. Failing that, the employee should approach their line manager’s
manager, or the Director. If the employee cannot raise their concern within
their department, they should approach Internal Audit, their Personnel
Manager, or the Head of Legal Services.

The nature of the complaint will determine the Council’s course of action and
the employee’s concerns may be investigated by service management,
Internal Audit, or Personnel.

Audit and Risk Management can be contacted at:
Level 2,Alexandra House,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green,

London,

N22 7TR

Telephone: 020 8489 3768
Fax: 020 8489 3827

5. What should a member of the public do if they suspect fraud or corruption?

5.1

52

53

5.4

The Council encourages members of the public who suspect fraud and
corruption to contact the Head of Legal Services or Audit and Risk
Management in the first instance.

Audit and Risk Management operates independently of all other Council
departments.

The possible courses of action taken by the Council are outlined in section 6
below.

Audit and Risk Management can be contacted at:
Level 2, Alexandra House,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green,

London,

N22 7TR

Telephone: 020 8489 3768
Fax: 020 8489 3827

6. How will allegations of fraud or corruption be dealt with by the council?



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 35

Appendix 1
For issues raised by employees or members of the public, the action taken by
the Council will depend on the nature of the concern. The matters raised may
be investigated internally, or referred to the Police.

We cannot say how every individual case will be dealt with. However, the
Council does have a Disciplinary Code of Practice which sets out the general
processes for in disciplinary cases. We will comply fully with this Code in our
investigations. As a general guide, we will use the following approach to
ensure that clear lines of communication are in place, ensure that appropriate
people and specialists are involved at the right times, and confidentiality is
maintained. We will:

¢ Inform the relevant manager of the allegation;

e Undertake an initial review to see if the allegation could be true;

e Advise the relevant manager of the results of the initial review and
agree whether there needs to be any further investigation;

e Inform the Personnel Department of the investigation to date and agree
whether the employee should be suspended from work to allow for
further investigations to take place;

e Agree an approach with the manager and personnel to complete the
investigation, together with any relevant timescales;

e Produce a final report on the findings of the investigation, which will
say whether any breaches of the Council’s procedures, regulations, or
Code of Conduct have taken place.

Within ten working days of a concern being received, the responsible officer
will write to the complainant:
e Acknowledging that the concern has been received,;
¢ Indicating how they propose to deal with the matter;
e Giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response;
and
e Provide individuals with information on staff support mechanisms.

The Council accepts that those people who reported the alleged fraud or
corruption need to be assured that the matter has been properly addressed.
Subject to legal constraints, the Council will inform the person raising the
concern about the progress and outcome of any investigation.

7. Alternative methods for raising concerns

7.1

If either a member of the public or an employee feel that it is right to take the
matter outside these processes, the following are possible ways forward:

e your local Gouncillor - If you live within Haringey, your Councillor can be
contacted at their regular surgery in your area. If you are not sure which is
your Councillor, visit our website, www.haringev.gov.uk or call 020 8489
2947. You can also write to your councillor at: Member Services, Level 5,
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ.




Page 36

Appendix 1
e the council’s external auditors (Grant Thornton) - These are appointed
to review and comment on the Council’s finances and performance. By
law, they must be completely independent from the Council. They can be
contacted at paul.dossett@gtuk.com.

e your Trade Union — employees may invite their Trade Union to raise a
matter on their behalf.

 the Police - suspicions of fraud or corruption may be reported directly to

the Police.

Audit and Risk Management
July 2008



Page 37

Appendix 2
WHISTLEBLOWING
Contents Page
WHISTLEBLOWING
Background 1
Summary of Whistleblowing Policy 1
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2
Whistleblowing Policy
e Introduction 3
o Who it applies to 3
e How you ldentify matters of concern 3
e How to raise your concern 3
¢ How the Council will respond 4
¢ Investigating the case 4
* The Responsible Officer 5
e How the matter can be taken further 5
¢ Protection for Whistleblowers - Confidentiality 6
e Untrue Allegations 6
¢ Anonymous Allegations 6
» Victimisation 6
e Contracting Organisations 6

Guidance Notes for Managers 7



Page 38
Appendix 2

WHISTLEBLOWING

The Government’s paper on an ethical framework for local government proposed that
every local authority should institute a procedure for whistleblowing, which would
enable workers to raise concerns about malpractice confidentially inside and, if
necessary, outside the organisation. In line with these proposals, the Council
designed a whistleblowing policy based on guidance from the Local Government
Board (LGMB) and this was agreed by Personnel Sub Committee on 10 November
1998. The Council’'s whistleblowing policy is kept under review to ensure it complies
with relevant guidance and best practice.

The Whistleblowing Policy is set out in full on page 3 with additional Guidance for
Managers on page 7. Key points from the Policy are listed below together with
information on the Public Interest Disclosure Act which provides protection for
whistleblowers.

e Where a worker has concerns about malpractice (and it is not appropriate to raise
them through other procedures) they should be raised with:

either (@)  The worker’s line manager

or failing that (b) ~ The line manager’s manager (grandparent role) or
the director

2nd step (c) Head of Audit and Risk Management, Human Resources
or Head of Legal Services

3rd step (d)  Members

final step (e)  an external organisation - i.e. Grant Thornton. This is the
Council’'s independently appointed External Auditor and can be contacted at
the following email address paul.dossett@gtuk.com.

» The Council will provide a written response to the whistleblower, assuming the
referral is not made anonymously, within ten days indicating how it proposes to
deal with the concerns raised.

e The Council will seek to protect the worker's identity when they raise a concern
and do not want their name to be disclosed. However, during the investigation the
source of the information may be revealed and individuals may be required to
provide a statement.

e The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take action to
protect a worker raising a concern in good faith.

Revised 06/2008



Page 39
Appendix 2

» Investigations conducted under this Policy will follow the same process as the
Disciplinary Procedures for investigating cases of misconduct/gross misconduct .

» If employees make an allegation which they believe to be genuine but is
then not proven, no action will be taken against them. However, employees
who maliciously raise an unfounded concern may have disciplinary action
taken against them.

losure Ac , @ worker will have the right not to
suffer detriment or be unfairly dismissed as the result of speaking out about crime,
fraud, miscarriages of justice, dangers to health and safety, breaches of civil service
code or risks to the environment.

The Whistleblower must reasonably believe that one of the conditions that constitutes
a qualifying disclosure is occurring, and must make the disclosure in good faith and
not for personal gain.

A qualifying disclosure means any disclosure of information which in the reasonable
belief of the worker making the disclosure tends to show one or more of the following:

e that a criminal offence has been committed, is being committed, or is likely to be
committed;

e that a person has failed, is failing or is likely to fail to comply with any legal
obligation to which he is subject;

e that a miscarriage of justice has occurred, is occurring or is likely to occur;

e that the health or safety of any individual has been, is being or is likely to be
endangered;

e that the environment has been, is being or is likely to be damaged.

If workers wish to raise the matter externally rather than internally, they will be
protected only if they can show that they are not motivated by personal gain and that
they reasonably believe the information they are giving is true.

If victimised by their employers, whistleblowers can bring a claim to an employment
tribunal for compensation. Awards will be uncapped and based on the losses
suffered. Gagging clauses in employment contracts and severance agreements will
be void.

Revised 06/2008



Page 40
Appendix 2

INTRODUCTION
Workers of the Council have an important role in helping the organisation to promote
good practice while providing a service to the community and protecting its
vulnerable clients.

Workers are usually the first to know when something is going seriously wrong - be it
a serious danger to the public or a major fraud. All too often the alarm is not sounded
on malpractice. The result is that the people in charge do not get the chance to take
action before real damage is done.

Whistleblowing policies aim to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and
addressed in the workplace and are increasingly recognised as a key tool to deliver
good practice. It is essential for Haringey that a whistleblowing policy/procedure is in
place and well publicised so all staff are aware of what is required of them.

We must ensure that the code meets the requirements of the Council's equality
policies and is not misused in any way to discriminate against minority groups.

1.Who it applies to

This policy applies to all Council workers which includes senior and junior members
of staff. The following sections set out what you should do and how the council will
respond in cases which are referred under this policy.

2. How you identify matters of concern

That concern may be something that:-

is unlawful

is against the Council’s standing orders or policies

falls below established standards or practice

amounts to improper conduct

involves clients or the public being put in danger

e involves funds being stolen or wasted.

This is not an exhaustive list and you should speak to your manager, or contact one
of the people or organisations listed below, if you need further advice.

3.How to raise your concern
Where you have concerns about malpractice and it is not appropriate to raise them
through other procedures such as grievance procedures, they should be raised with:-

either (&)  your line manager
orfailing that  (b)  the line manager's manager (grandparent role) or
the director

2nd step (¢)  the Head of Audit and Risk Management, Human
Resources, or the Head of Legal Services

3rd step (d) Members

3

Revised 06/2008



Page 41
Appendix 2

final step e) an external organisation - Grant Thornton. This is
the Council’s independently appointed External Auditor
and can be contacted at the following email
address paul.dossett@gtuk.com

The decision to raise concerns with the managers listed above, will depend on
the seriousness and sensitivity or the issues involved and who is thought to be
involved in the malpractice. If you believe that management is involved, you
could approach any of the following: the Head of Legal Services, the Head of
Audit and Risk Management, Human Resources or Grant Thorntons, the
Council’s external Auditors.

4. How the Council will respond
Within ten days of a concern being raised the responsible person will:-

e Assess the complaint and identify the most effective process to use to
investigate the allegations raised.

e Notify the Head of Audit and Risk Management that a complaint has
been raised to ensure it is recorded properly in accordance with this
policy.

» write to the person raising the complaint, assuming that the referral has not
been made anonymously, to acknowledge their complaint

indicate how they propose to deal with the matter raised

e give an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final
response
e provide individuals with information on staff support mechanisms.

There are existing procedures in place to enable individuals to lodge a
grievance relating to their own employment. A grievance should be seen as a
direct concern to individuals whilst whistleblowing concerns the wider
- organisation.

This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to cover concerns that fall outside the
scope of other procedures These include:-

conduct which is an offence or a breach of law

health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other
employees

the unauthorised use of public funds

possible fraud and corruption

damages to the environment

sexual or physical abuse of clients

other unethical conduct.

5. Investigating the case

Following an allegation, where appropriate, an independent and impartial
manager will be involved in the investigation.

4
Revised 06/2008



Page 42
Appendix 2

Managers will make sure that the investigation is carried out as quickly and as
thoroughly as possible.

Once an investigation commences, every effort will be made to bring it to an
early conclusion.

To conduct an investigation under the Whistleblowing Policy, managers will
follow the same process as the Disciplinary Procedures for investigating cases
of misconduct/gross misconduct.

An investigation may conclude that, potentially, there has been a breach of the
Council's Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Rules. In these circumstances,
management would invoke the disciplinary process.

The amount of contact between the officers considering the issues and you will
depend on the nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved
and the clarity of the information provided.

The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties which you may
experience as a result of raising a concern. For instance, if you are required to
give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Council will arrange
for you to receive advice about the procedure.

The Council accepts that you need to be assured that the matter has been
properly addressed. Thus, subject to legal constraints, we will inform you of the
progress and outcome of any investigation.

6. The responsible officer

The Head of Legal Services, (Monitoring Officer), has overall responsibility for
the maintenance and operation of this policy. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management will maintain a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in
a form which does not breach your confidentiality) and will report as necessary
to the Council

7. How the matter can be‘takén further

This policy is intended to provide you with an avenue within the Council to
raise concerns. The Council hopes you will be satisfied with any action taken. If
you are not, and if you feel it is right to take the matter outside the Council, the
following are possible contact points:

Grant Thornton — The Council’'s External Auditors
your trade union

your local Citizens Advice Bureau

the District Auditor

the Police.

If you do take the matter outside the Council, you should ensure that you do not
disclose confidential information. Check with the contact point about that.

5
Revised 06/2008



Page 43
Appendix 2

8. Protection for Whistleblowers - Confidentiality

The Council will seek to protect an individual's identity when they raise a
concern and do not want their name to be disclosed. However, during the
investigation the source of the information may be revealed and the individual
may be required to provide a statement.

9. Untrue Allegations

If you make an allegation which you think is genuine but is not proven, no
action will be taken against you. If, however, you maliciously raise an
unfounded concern, then disciplinary action may be taken against you.

10. Anonymous Allegations

The policy encourages individuals to put their name to their allegations. However, it
is understood that some people may wish to remain anonymous. Concerns
expressed in this way are much less powerful, but will be considered, at the
discretion of the Council.

In exercising the discretion the factors to be taken into account would include: the
seriousness of the issues raised, and the credibility of the concern.

11. Victimisation

The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take action to
protect you when you raise a concern in good faith.

If you do receive reprisals from those responsible for the malpractice or any other
member of staff, they may be disciplined under the Council's procedures.

12. Contracting Organisations

These arrangements will be extended, with appropriate variations, to staff of
contracting organisations. Such arrangements will be carefully confined to those
areas of activity relating specifically to contractors’ relationships with the Council and
should not extend to contractors’ internal arrangements.

It is necessary for all involved in the process, i.e. Council staff, whistleblowers
and anyone accused of malpractice, for whistleblowing to be dealt with
properly, quickly and discreetly to make the process efficient, fair and
effective.

Revised 06/2008



Page 44
Appendix 2

'WHAT IS WHISTLEBLOWING

Whistleblowing is when a worker discloses, i.e. ‘blows the whistle’ on, any
wrongdoings such as fraud, malpractice, mismanagement, breach of any health and
safety law or any other illegal act, either on the part of management or by fellow
workers.

It often happens when:-
i) workers have tried to complain through internal channels and have failed
ii) the organisation’s culture persuades workers that complaints will be ignored

iii) the person committing malpractice is the worker's direct boss and/or at the top of
the organisation, so again workers feel to complain directly would be useless and
result in victimisation.

Management Responsibility

When workers discover something is wrong they should be encouraged to report the
malpractice. This gives managers the chance to correct any malpractice before the
issue escalates.

Managers must try to ensure that workers who make a complaint have confidence
that:

a) itis going to be properly investigated and addressed
b) they will suffer no detriment as a result of speaking out.

N.B Victimising or deterring workers from raising legitimate concemns is a
serious disciplinary offence. Whistleblowers are also afforded protection
under the Public Interest Disclosure Act (see page 2).

Managers must have respect for the confidentiality of workers raising concerns if
they (the workers) so wish. However, workers should be made aware that during the
investigation the source of the information may need to be revealed and the
individual may be required to provide a statement.

In all cases where an employee uses the Council's Whistleblowing policy to raise
their concerns, the person receiving the concern must notify the Head of Audit and
Risk Management. They are the Council's nominated officer for recording any
Whistleblowing referrals and are required to maintain a log, which ensures
confidentiality, and provide periodic information on the use of the Whistleblowing

policy.

Revised 06/2008



Page 45

Appendix 2

As a first step, individuals should normally raise concerns with their line manager or
their manager's manager (grandparent role) or the Director. Secondly, if for example
they believe management is involved, they should approach the Head of Legal
Services, Human Resources, or the Head of Audit and Risk Management. The next
step should be to Members and finally to an external agency (see below).

Depending on the seriousness of the allegation and who is suspected of the
malpractice, individuals may wish to report directly to the Head of Legal Services or
Members.

It must be emphasised that, before deciding on using external mechanisms, a final
request to the Head of Legal Services or members should be encouraged.

If whistleblowers fear that their employer will bring retribution, they can make a wider
disclosure to the police, the media or MPs.

External Reporting Mechanisms

If individuals do not feel confident using the internal reporting channels they should
contact Grant Thornton, an external organisation who are the Council's
independently appointed External Auditor and can be contacted via email at
paul.dossett@gtuk.com.

Revised 06/2008



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o) .]

Audit Committee On 22 July 2008

Report Title: Money Laundering Regulations 2007

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To identify the impact on the Council of the new Money Laundering Regulations 2007
that came into effect on 15 December 2007. These build upon the existing Money
Laundering Regulations 2003, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, Terrorism Act 2000, and
the Terrorism Act 2006.

1.2 To provide a revised Anti-Money Laundering Policy and procedures for approval.

2. Recommendations
2.1 To note the implications of the new Money Laundering Regulations 2007; and

2.2 To agree the resultant revised Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering policy
and procedures as given in appendix A.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 List of background documents:
The following background documents were used in production of this report:
e Money Laundering Regulations 2007




Page 48

4. Background

4.1 The new regulation implements Directive 2005/60/EC of the European Parliament and
of the Council on the prevention of the use of the financial system for the purpose of
money laundering and terrorist financing (the Third Directive).

4.2 The Council responded to the previous Money Laundering Regulations 2003 by
introducing the Money Laundering procedure and guidance, which was written in
conjunction with relevant Proceeds of Crime and Data Protection guidance. The
guidance was last updated in January 2004, following the introduction of the Money
Laundering Regulations 2003.

5. Money Laundering Regulations 2007

5.1The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 implement the main preventative measure of
the Third Directive, namely requiring risk based customer due diligence measures.

5.2 The Third Directive and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 apply to a defined set
of relevant financial services. Most of the Council’s business does not fall within the
classification of “relevant” financial services. It is mainly those services involving
accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which could be carrying out
relevant business. The following are examples of the type of transactions:

+ treasury management in accepting deposits/investments;

 legal services’ involvement with financial or property transactions;

« collection or refunding of money from the council’s debtors:

» loans and mortgage deals;

« formation and management of companies or trusts; and,

» dealing in transactions involving a total cash payment in excess of £10,000.

5.3 As with the previous regulations, it is debatable as to the degree to which local
authorities need to ensure compliance, but the Council’s operations do include
transactions and business that could involve money laundering. The client identification
requirements are applicable only to those activities that are defined as relevant
business.

5.4However, the reporting requirements are different. The legislation is such that all
organisations and individuals must, if they suspect money laundering, inform the
Serious Organised Crime Agency (SOCA).

5.5 Haringey's approach has been to put in place arrangements within the Council that
comply with the regulations and reflect good practice. In this way the Council is seen to
be acting prudently and to the proper professional standards that certain officers will
need to follow. In respect of legal issues, the Law Society requires the Council to have
anti-money laundering policies and guidance in place and to complete regular returns
in respect of money laundering. In respect of financial issues, the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) have declared an intention to revise their
guidance, but to date nothing has been produced.

Page 2 of 4



Page 49

5.6 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007, for the first time, required firms to vary
identification and monitoring of their customer on a risk sensitive basis. Firms are
allowed to reduce the level of customer identification in specified lower risk situations,
for example, dealing with public bodies.

5.7Reviewing the Council's existing processes and procedures relating to money
laundering has resulted in the policy being redrafted to include a section on due
diligence (see appendix A). In most cases, the business undertaken will be where the
client is another public or statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment indicates
that no further due diligence about the status of the client is needed.

5.8 However, for other third party clients or politically exposed persons, there needs to be
formal and recorded due diligence checks. In these rare circumstances, guidance on
performing the due diligence checks will be provided by the Head of Audit and Risk
Management, in their role as the Council's Money Laundering Reporting Officer, in
consultation with relevant officers from legal and corporate finance where appropriate.

5.9Therefore, a record must be maintained, including details of the customer due
diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the business
relationship and records of transactions, which also need to be kept for five years.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the revisions to the policy and
procedures.

7. Risk Implications for the Council

7.1Where the Council undertakes relevant business, it is normally with other public and
statutory bodies and therefore no specific due diligence is needed.

7.2Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. In order to mitigate this risk, the policy and
guidance has been produced and will be disseminated to relevant officers and made
available on the Council’s intranet site (Harinet).

8. Legal Implications

8.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
makes the following comments.

8.2 The Head of Legal Services agrees that it is debatable as to whether the Council is
obliged to adopt the Regulations. However, money laundering is a risk and as such
needs to be identified, assessed and mitigated. Accordingly, the Head of Legal
Services supports the recommendations contained in this report.

8.3 The Head of Legal Services is also able to report that his service already has a written
procedure dealing with money laundering, being a requirement of the Law Society
quality charter mark — Lexcel — which the service holds.

Page 3 of 4



Page 50

9. Conclusion

9.1 The Council should respond to the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 by reflecting
the need for due diligence in a revised Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering
policy. This may be subject to further change if CIPFA produces revised guidance. In
the interim, however, it is important that the Council’s procedures reflect the new
regulations and the Council’s policy is amended now.

Appendix A: Policy and Procedures: Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering

Page 4 of 4



Page 51
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

1. What is money laundering?

Money laundering is the term used for several offences involving the
proceeds of crime, or terrorism. This includes possessing, or in any

way dealing with, or concealing, or converting the proceeds of any crime, as
well as funds likely to be used for terrorism, as well as the proceeds of
terrorism. Money laundering is generally used to describe the activities of
organised criminals converting the proceeds of crime into legitimate activities,
with the intention of hiding their true sources of income.

The original Money Laundering legislation and regulations were designed to
combat this scale of criminal activity. However, the current legislation now
covers all proceeds of crime, both money and property, regardless of how
small the value. In reality, it involves a suspicion that someone is benefiting
financially from dishonest activities. Therefore, the money laundering aspect
would be the attempt to do legitimate business with the Council using
assets and/or monies derived from the proceeds of crime or terrorism.

This guidance sets out the legal and regulatory requirements relating to
money laundering, as they affect both the Council and you personally.

2. What laws exist to control money laundering?

In recent years, new laws have been passed which significantly shift the
burden for identifying acts of money laundering from Police and Government
agencies to organisations and their employees. The principal legislation and
regulation relating to money laundering are the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002,
the Terrorism Act 2000, and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007.

There are three primary offences to take account of:

» ‘concealing’ is where someone knows, or suspects, a case of money
laundering, but conceals or disguises its existence;

« ‘arranging’ is where someone involves himself or herself in an
arrangement to assist money laundering; and,

» ‘acquisition’, ‘use’, or ‘possession’ is where someone seeks to benefit
from money laundering by acquiring, using, or possessing the property
concerned.

There are also two third party offences to take account of:

» ‘failing to disclose a primary offence’ is where someone becomes
aware or suspects money laundering, but fails to take action in reporting it;
and,

 ‘tipping off’ is where someone informs a person who is, or is suspected of
being, involved in money laundering, in such a way as to reduce the
likelihood of being investigated, or prejudicing an investigation.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/May 2008 Page 1 of 4



Page 52
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

These money laundering offences may be committed by the Council itself, or
by any of the Members and employees (including permanent, agency and
temporary staff) working within it.

3. What is the Council’s response to money laundering?
Local authorities have a responsibility to ensure the proper conduct of
public business. The consequences of the Council or any of its Members or
employees facing prosecution under the money laundering legislation would
be very serious and reflect poorly not only on the Council, but on the

public service as a whole.

Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money
laundering, the size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to
discount entirely the risks surrounding money laundering. In order to mitigate
this risk, this policy and guidance, including reporting arrangements, has been
produced.

Management should ensure that arrangements are in place to prevent the
Council and its Members and employees being exposed to money laundering
in those services where there is a potential risk. They should also ensure that
those Members and employees who may become exposed to money
laundering are made fully aware of this guidance and are suitably trained.

It should be noted that the professional bodies of some employees (e.g.
accountants and solicitors) have issued guidance on personal obligations and
responsibilities relating to money laundering, and those employees should
familiarise themselves with that guidance.

4. What are the implications for staff who become involved?
Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering are
found in the appendix to this document. However, it cannot be stressed too
strongly that it is every Member and employee’s responsibility to be vigilant,
and to be aware of the requirement to report actual or suspected cases of
money laundering.

While it is unlikely that a Member or employee would commit one of the three
primary offences, a failure to disclose a suspicion of money laundering is a
serious offence in itself, and there are only very limited grounds in law for not
reporting a suspicion.

Depending on the severity of the suspected offence, the Magistrates’ Court
can issue fines of up to £5,000, or sentences of up to 6 months in prison (or
both), and, in the Crown Court, fines are unlimited, and sentences of up to 14
years may be handed out.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/May 2008 Page 2 of 4



Page 53
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

5. How do we ensure due diligence?

The Money Laundering Regulations 2007, for the first time, require the
identification and monitoring of clients on a risk sensitive basis. Where
relevant business is undertaken, the clients need to be subject to some form
of risk based due diligence. Most of the Council’s business is not defined in
the regulations as being relevant; it is mainly those services involving
accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which could be carrying
out relevant business.

In most cases, the business undertaken will be where the client is another
public or statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment indicates that no
further due diligence about the status of the client is needed. However, for
other third party clients or politically exposed persons (see attached appendix
for definition) there needs to be formal and recorded due diligence checks. A
record will be maintained, by Corporate Finance, including details of the
customer due diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of
the business relationship together with a record of the transactions also kept
for five years. In these rare circumstances, guidance on performing the due
diligence checks can be obtained from the Head of Audit and Risk
Management.

6. What should I do if | suspect a case of money laundering?
If you have any questions or doubts about an individual, company, or
transaction that you have been dealing with, then it is important to seek
advice from the Head of Audit and Risk Management. This approach means
that the information can be considered at the time the transaction or the
business takes place.

Section 2 of this guidance states that failure to take action or to report
activities is an offence under the Regulations. However, failure to do so

is only an offence if the suspicion relates, in the event, to an actual crime.
Therefore, a common sense approach needs to be taken, in order to ensure
that officers’ time is not wasted.

The Council has nominated the Head of Audit and Risk Management within
the Corporate Resources Directorate as the officer responsible for dealing
with any suspicions of money laundering. You should therefore report any
suspicious transactions or concerns to the Head of Audit and Risk
Management in writing. The matter would then be discussed with you and a
decision made whether to make a formal report to the Serious Organised
Crime Agency.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/May 2008 Page 3 0of 4



Page 54
Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

A. Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money
laundering

1. There may be situations where funds come into the Council from an
unfamiliar source. In particular, if the Council is forming a new
business relationship, or is considering undertaking a significant one-off
transaction, it would be prudent to identify fully the parties involved.
This will be especially true if the parties concerned are not physically
present, or may be acting for absent third parties.

2. Transactions involving the handling of the proceeds of asset disposals,
e.g. land sales, can be especially vulnerable, and may demand further
enquiry. Caution should be exercised in respect of:

e unusual arrangements; offshore funds being used:;

« transactions involving a third party who is not known to the Council, or
where the identity of a party is difficult to establish or is undisclosed:

« Wwhere an intermediary is involved, or where the ultimate ownership of a
company is hidden; and,

» situations where a party is evasive as to the source of funds.

3. Members or employees having direct contact with the public or
businesses may become suspicious where the nature of the goods or the
amounts of the cash seems inconsistent with what might, in the
circumstances, be regarded as normal.

4. Cashiers may be asked, in the normal course of their work, to accept
payments in unusually amounts of cash for the settlement of debts. As a
guide, sums in the region of £10,000 and above would be regarded as a
sum of cash that should be reported.

5. Circumstances which might arouse particular suspicion are where cash
is tendered which exceeds significantly the amount of the debt, or are paid
twice or more and the person or business requests subsequently a refund
from the Council of the balance.

B. Politically Exposed Persons

The Regulations define politically exposed persons as a person “..who is or
has, at any time in the preceding year been entrusted with a prominent
public function by a state other than the United Kingdom, an European
Community institution or an international body” or a family member or known
close associate of such a person.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/May 2008 Page 4 of 4



Page 55 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Counci

Agenda item: [N o) .]

Audit Committee On 22 July 2008

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report - 2008/09 Quarter 1

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): NJA

‘Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service
for the first quarter 2008/09 and reports outstanding from 2007/08,

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Audit Committee notes the audit coverage and progress during the first
quarter 2008/09 and on the reports outstanding from 2007/08.

2.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

2.3 That the Audit Committee considers whether any further action is necessary to
address outstanding priority 1 recommendations.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.




4.

Page 56

Background

4.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Audit Committee of the audit activity for the

first quarter of 2008/09. In addition, the report updates the position on those reports
from 2007/08 which remained outstanding at 31 March 2007.

4.2 This is the first report presented in the new format which was agreed at the Audit

5.1

6.

Committee on 24 June 2008. The aim of the revised report is to provide:

* An overall summary of completed reports, providing details of the date when the
audit was undertaken; the date of the final report; the assurance level; the direction
of travel (providing a comparison against previous years); the number of
recommendations made in each of the priority areas; and any further comments;

e Where a ‘limited’ or ‘no’ audit assurance level is indicated, a more detailed
summary is included;

* An overall summary of work completed as part of the work on the Financial
Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS);

* An overall report on the outcome of audit follow up work; and

* A more detailed summary of progress in management’s implementation of the
Priority 1 recommendations made.

Performance Management Information

Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local
performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form
part of Corporate Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for
information. The table shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and
gives a breakdown between the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Pl Performance Indicator 1t Year to Target

Ref. Quarter date

Al Audits completed vs. 14% 14% 95%
Planned programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 3.6 3.6 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 16 16 12
investigations (2007/08 weeks weeks weeks
referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 67% 67% 95%
implemented at follow up
(2007/08 follow up)

Deloitte and Touche

6.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the first quarter of 2008/09 to date is detailed at

Appendix A. This also includes details of all reports outstanding from 2007/08, which
are separately identified. For 2008/09, a total of 14 projects was planned for the first
quarter, including school visits. To date, 2 projects have been completed and issued
as final reports. A further 4 projects have been completed and draft reports have been
issued.

Page 2 of 4



Page 57

6.2The programme of planned follow up audits is also reported at Appendix A. For follow
up work in relation to 2007/08 audits, a total of 20 recommendations have been
subject to follow up. Of these, 8 have been implemented including 6 out of 9 priority 1
recommendations. A further 5 are in progress and being implemented and 4
recommendations are no longer applicable. In total, a 50% compliance rate has been
achieved, which is higher than previous years.

6.3The work of internal audit and the new reporting requirements to both the Audit
Committee and Cabinet, which receive details of all outstanding Priority 1
recommendations as part of the 2008/09 corporate performance reporting
arrangements have ensured that managers take greater responsibility for implementing
recommendations. The percentage of outstanding priority 1 recommendations from
2006/07 remains high and internal audit will continue to work with managers to ensure
these are addressed.

6.4 At the previous Audit Committee, further details of all outstanding recommendations
reported when the follow up work was undertaken were provided. Since July 2007,
work has been ongoing, in conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, to ensure that
Directors were aware of the required actions necessary. As a result, Appendix A also
contains a detailed explanation of the status of all priority 1 recommendations from
2004/05 and 2005/06 which were reported as ‘not implemented’ when the original
follow up work was completed.

6.5At the end of 2007/08, there were a total of 8 priority 1 recommendations which had
not been implemented from previous years. Of these, which have been agreed by
managers, one had now been implemented and the remaining recommendations were
in the process of being implemented and a revised deadline for completion has been
provided. Directors have been kept informed of progress at all stages and Internal
Audit are satisfied that managers are taking appropriate action to address the issues
raised in the original recommendations.

7. In-house Team - Fraud investigation/Irregularities

7.11In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the
Information Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were
completed by the In-house Team during the first quarter 2008/09 and brought forward
from 2007/08.

7.2Within the first quarter, four new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation,
and one case was completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The
cases investigated during the first quarter covered a number of allegations from
fraudulent misuse of grant money and fraudulent overtime claims. During 2008/09, the
average length of time taken to investigate all allegations was 16 weeks.

7.3The council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised
on the Council website, by which members of the public can reports instances of
suspected fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these
referrals. During 2008/09 to date, two referrals in relation to new allegations were made

Page 3 of 4



Page 58

via the council’s email reporting facility. A further five emails were received. Of these,
two related to previous investigations and three were in relation to housing
benefit/council tax issues and were referred to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation
Team. No referrals were made via the telephone reporting facility.

7.4The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In
2008/09 to date, there was one referral for investigation. Improvements in procedures,
including the introduction of ‘positive pay’ whereby the council’'s banking team
receives information on cheques before they are cleared, and new cheque security
measures have substantially reduced the level of fraudulent activity in this area. The
council has not lost any money, as the fraud was detected and the cheque was not
cashed.

7.5Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the
first quarter of 2008/09. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been
provided in line with council statistics reported elsewhere. In addition, better
management information is now available to assist in monitoring and reviewing
outstanding cases in order to improve processes across all directorates.

8. In-house Team — other work

8.1 In addition to the investigation of allegations of fraud and financial irregularity, the In-
house Team has completed work to provide assurance and an audit certificate on three
corporate grant claims: Supporting People; LAA grant; and the GAF grant. Central
government and Government Office for London required that each grant was supported
by an internal audit certification that the grant monies, which were in excess of £40
million, had been used in accordance with the grant terms and conditions.

8.2 In all cases, internal audit were able to provide the required assurance to the funding
bodies. Some control weaknesses were identified, although these were not significant
and did not impact on internal audit’s overall opinion. Where control weaknesses were
identified, action plans have been put in place to ensure that the recommendations
made are addressed. In addition, internal audit have been working with service
departments and corporate finance to update and re-issue the guidance for managers
responsible for grant expenditure.

9. Risk Management

9.1 Members requested that the Audit Committee receive regular information on risk
management and progress on implementing the Council’s updated risk management
strategy. It is proposed that the updates are provided on a quarterly basis as part of
the regular progress reporting and that a separate report on risk management work is
provided on an annual basis. The annual report on risk management work will include
the submission of the corporate risk register for Member review.

9.2 During the first quarter, business units and directorates have been updating their risk
registers to reflect the agreed objectives and priorities for the 2008/09 business plans.
Appendix D shows the latest position for all Business Units and Directorates as at
June 2008. All Business Units have provided copies of the latest version of their risk
registers and the directorate risk registers are currently being agreed by the respective
management teams. When this is complete, the corporate risk register will be updated
and reviewed by CEMB.

Page 4 of 4



Page 59

V XION3ddV

800T Anf
PYT MIPNY [BUISIU] J0309S JI[qNd dYono [, 29 ONI0[d(]

AJ3uLIR JO Y3noiog uopuo|

600¢7/800¢
310day] JIpny [ewIdjuy | J931end)
Jipny [eu.Rju]



Page 60

60/800¢ Woday 1 1euen) — ypny [ewiou] Lefurel] jo ySnotog uopuo

G e e e e ANqrsuodsay Jo JuowNelg
vl 90/500C PU® S0/+00T - SUOIBPUAWIWOIY | AJIOL] JO dn-mof[o,]
7 R T LT PP P PP PP 80/L00T — 91qe.L, d) Mo[0y
L™ *r T, £0/900¢ — $91qe. dn-mo[[o,]
G ATRUILING PUE SJUSWSSOSSY — S[00YIS UT PIEPULIS JUSWOTRUEI [SIOUBUL]
€ 80/L00T :1oday ssai3oid 1pny
T B PR 60/300T - T Jo1ENQ) 5821301 11PNy
[Free e e e e, AIRWIWINg 9ATIN0OXY
adeq
SJUIUO0))

V XION3ddV 60/8002 L¥0Od3d LIANV ATHILYVND - LIANV TYNJYILNI 31110734



Page 61

[ adeg 60/800T Hoday [ Joirend) ~ pny [euroiu] LoSuLiey] Jo ySnolog uopuo

S[00YDS AIBWLIJ JO ABM PUOIIS 10f SPPNE SISINA joieyg e
SHIPNY JUIWYSI[(RIST SIIIAIIS [BIDOS o
PNV JUAWRSULLIY ULINSU] o

:60/8007 I 19)1enQ) yo Areunung /s)qSiysry Lo

SUOIEPUAWIIOAI 9010RId 189q I0/pUR SIOPRW oUW - ¢ A1140Lg
UOTJO. JUOWSTBURW [BO0] 0] SUONBPUSWIWIONAI IOYI0 - ¢ AJLi0Lig
JUQWOSBURUL JOIUDS JO UONUSYIE oY) 10] sonsst 1ofewr - 7 Ajn0Lig

'$911059120 FUIMO[0F Y} 0} SUIPI0OE POsHLIOLd OIE SUOHEPUSIIILIOdDI INO ‘IOPUILLOT B S

PONIWIWO)) 1PNy Ay} 03 pajtodar Asnoiaoxd jou asoyy oe proq ur
PBIYSIY SIpne oY, “eRIuwio)) JIpay ay} o) papiodor pue panss st yodol [pUL ) oW oY} Aq SIOOLJO [ouno) Aq pojuowoyduir
usaq oAy Apedife AeW SUOHEPUSWINIOdDT PUE ‘)IpnE S} JO OWII) A} JE SWO)SAS oY) JO SMBs oY) 10apol $a[qe1 payoene AYJ.

‘sp1odoax
}pne [euly [enpIAIpuL 3y} Ul pafrejop Af[ny d1e ‘uonojdwod 10 oUIPEIp Sy} PUR I0LJO o[qIsuodsal oY) SUIpn[oul ‘SUOIBPUSUILIOID]
U} SSAIPPE 0} SUONOR  SIAOYF() "PasISe usdq aary odor sty unypim payydiysiy SOSSOUNBOM [ONUOD AUR SSIIPPE 0) SUOHRPUSUILLIOND]
[V "ponsst Sutoq wodar feury oy 03 Joud passnosip ore sandsip Aue pue ‘S1001J0 [IOUNO)) M padide ore SUOT)BPUSWIUIONDI [[Y

1sanbor uodn syrodar jipne ano jo sa1doo [[ng gy papiaoid aq os[e [[IM 20PIWIIO.) U} JO SIQQUISIA "90)IUWIO)) JIPNY oY)
JO SIQUIBIN 0} SISeq A[UowW & U0 papiaoid St Yoy UOEULIOFUT Arewuins oy} JoyeSo) smelp prodor 9], "UOTRUWLIOJUL 10 PapN]oul
SI SBUIPUL JIPNE 2OUBINSSE PIAYIWI] S} JO AIRWIWNS PI[IBIOP JIOW Y "SMOIAJI JIpNE [BUISIUT JO 9SIN0D 9y} FULINp PIYNUIPI UAQ
QABY DIYM [10UN0)) oY) pue sjusumedop fenprarpur Surory sysi Koy oty JySiyS1y 03 poudisop osje s prodor SIU} JO JRULIO} 9Y ], "W}
1040 pIZeurLU FUIO] dIE SYSLL MOY UO UOHBULIONUT YIIM SIOQUISIA 9p1A0Id [[IM YOTYM JIOM SWIQJSAS A 10J [9AR) JO UOTIOQIIP 3Y} JO
UOWESIPU U SOAIS PUB 9OUBINSSE [RTIURISqNS 10 [[Nf PIASIOE OARY YOIYM SBOIR 9SOY} UO UONEULIOJUT sapiaoad podar oy, -o8e)s [euy
Je M0U dIe YoM $110da1 [[e JO S[1eIop SuIpn[oul 8ak [BIOUBUL 60/800C Y} 10§ 910D JIpny oy 0} Jodol 1o1renb JSIIJ IO SISy,

uondnposuy

Arewuing dARNIIXGH

V XION3ddVY 60/8002 LYOd3¥ LIANV ATIILHVND - 11ANV TYNYILNI 311107130



Page 62

7 98gd 60/8007 Hoday | 1o1end) - upny [eursiu] Asguueyy Jo ysnoiog uopuory
0 0 0 a8uey) oN g 80°LO°LO 80°90°91 SHDWASUR.LTY ddUe.Insuy
£ < !
; . ; yodoy | jypny
SjuamIo)) (ALo11g [9ABL] JO [2A9] [euly jo IPLE Npny
; SHONEPUIMITNOIIY uondaII(] | ueanssy | jo agrq ajeq
Jo quny , ‘
‘uoneuLIoyul

SIPQUIN 10§ popiaoid os[e ore s3uljer souvINSSe [BNURISNS, 10 [[N], A9 JOU OP YIIYM S}pne [[e JO SoLIBWIUNS PA[IRId(]

PIRIUIWO)) JIPNY Sy} 0} paptodar A[snotaaid jou asop are proq ur paySiySy sypne QYL "eapIuwo)) 1pny ayj 0} parodor
pue pansst st 1odar [euy oy swp oy £q s1001Jo [OUN0Y £q pojuswa[du Usaq OARY Apeaife Aewl SUOHEPUSWILIONAL 9} T8y} PojoU
9q JSnUL 3] JIpne ay) JO oW dy3 J8 SWNSAS oY) Jo snye)s oYy pue Ioirenb siyy ur pojordwos sjpne oy o )08 9[qe) SUIMO][O} o],

:60/8007 T 1931en() — Arewwing ssa150.1g JIpny

V XION3ddV 60/800Z L¥0Od3Y 11ANV ATHILYVND - LIANV TYNYILINI 311107130




Page 63

60/800T Hoday[ [ 1a1rend) — ypny [eueiu] L5uLier] Jo y3noiog uopuo|

9 6 0O ﬂvﬁo&mo% @oﬁﬁﬂA wom.ovo 80 Hoo uﬁosvohc.wﬁmm 2y —chaﬁsu w:Ehﬁm—
0 6 0 V/N fenuelsqng 80'90'9¢ 80 94 SINNIGESI(] YIIA WIPY D
I ¢ 0 V/N [enuelisqng 80°90'9¢C 80 934 Surraysoy
9 01 I V/N [enueisqng 80°LOTO 80 YoIleN fo1sed 29 YH SISV IVS
< 01 0 V/N payuary 80°¢0°T0 80 YoIeN LI - WajsAS JUAWAII0JU [BJUIWUCTIATF
0 9 1 @@Soﬂﬁwﬁobm —mﬁﬁﬁuwﬂﬂm 0 \\ONO L0 AON m@wﬁ@&%ﬁ ¥y ——Qh%ﬁam
£ < 1 :
yodoy jnpny
SjuamiuIo ) &iony) paRa] [°A9] jeury Jo AL 3Py
SUONEPUIWIHO0INY Jo wondaaI(q | Aueanssy | Jo NrQg aeq
Jo quiny
"UONBWIOUL

SIOQUIBIN 10J papiaoid os[e oIk sSUNEI QOURINSSE [EHURISQNS, 10 [N, SAISII JOU OP YOIYM SHPAR [[B JO SOLIBWIWNS PA[RIO(]

APIUIUO)) 1PN a1 0} pajtodar Asnotaaid jou asoy a1e ploq ul paySIYSHy sypne o], "soPIUWo)) JIpNY ) 0}

patodar pue ponsst st 110da1 [euyy o3 dwn Sy £q 1291350 [PUNOY) £q pajuswaldurr usaq aary Apeaife Aewr SUOIBPUSWILIOIAI Oy} JBY)
pajou oq jsntu 3 JIpne oY) JO Sw ) Je SWA)SAS oY) JO SNJeIs Sy} pur Iopenb SIY) Ul pesi[eur} S)pne oY) N0 S}OS 3[qeI FUIMO[[O] U],

¥ XIAN3ddV

:80/L007 — Arewwng ss3.1301J Jipny

60/800C LYOd3Y 1IANV ATHILYVNO - LIdNV TYNYILNI 3LLI0713a




#aded 60/800C Moday | 121rend) — yipny [ewroiu] AoSuLey Jo ySnolog uopuo|

Page 64

Py

JoueInssy

dupwmu pue eydye Jo uoneUIqUIOd € axmbail
10U pIp pue SISJPOBIEYD XIS JO WNWIUILL B JOU 2I0M SPIOMSSE] e

oI

PUNOJ 9IOM SISSOUNBIM OIOYM SBIIR () JO SWOS "YSLI Je S9A1}02[qo

wolshs oy} Ind yoIym SOSSoUEOM Qe OIOU) WLISAS oY) UNIIA\
‘Appanoapys Sunerodo oq 0) punoj a1om sjonuod yndur eyep

oy} ‘9 UOHEPUSWILLIONDL Ul PasTel sansst oy} Jo uondooxo oy} Yy e

pue
‘paureiqo oq pnoo sydwoaye uIdof 991y} PYIOUR 9I0JOq JUNOIIE dY)
Joo[un 0} IojensIUIWIpe WoISAs oY) paxnbor pue sydwoeype uidof
[NFSSO00NSUN J2IY) JOYJe WDISAS AU} JO JNO PayoO] dIoM SIOS[) e

‘SOATOSWAL) 0) A[UO UMOUY
piomssed 1oyjoue asoyo 0} 1osn oy} SuroIoy 2I0§aIdY) ‘plomssed
}nejop a3 03 Yorq promssed mou o) oFurydO 0} S[qE JOU SBM Iosn
oyi pue Anud 1s1y uodn padueydp 9510] o1om spromssed Jnejo(] e

‘uoneordde ayy 03 ssaoor

‘uoneotjdde Jg¢N oY) uo Sururen
PoAIdda1 pey pue pojutodde uedq pey JOJRNSIUTWIPE WOISAS Y e

:MO[9q PIISI] 2IB YOIYM JO SUIOS
‘Auojoegsnes Funeiado 9q 0] PaAIESqo 9I0M S[ONU0D JO IdqUINU Y

Surured o} Joud pannbor sem promssed pue oweurdsn onbiun y e

‘sjuowoduriie
KI9A0001 19)SBSIP / AJINUNUOD SSoUISNY o

pue ‘sompadoid dnyoeg

‘[ren Jpny

‘sooejIOIUL

‘sfonuoo 3urssoooid pue ndino “ndug

‘woIsAs ay Jo
UONBINSJUOD AJLINOJS PUB S[ONUOD SSAOIL [BIIFO]

9INJONI)S SSI00. IIS() e wa)sAg

ySL '$9A1102[qO [01U0O puk SBOIR JUWI0JUY

18 $9A1)09[q0 woysAs o) Ind 0 se (ons dIe WISISAS JY) UT SISSOU LI A SuIMO]]0] oY) J0A0D 0) Ud¥RIOpUN SBM HIOM JIpNY [eIuSWHOTA U]
SINALSAS L1

SouIpulj Ady/snjejs emcow _ vale )ipny

:SoLIemInS pafre)dq

V XION3ddV 60/800Z LHOd3Y LIANV ATIILAVND - LIANV TVNYILNI 31110713d




¢ 28eg 60/800T Hoday[ [ 1ouen() — yipny [euralu] LeSuLiely jo y3noog uopuo|

pajiuary

1MO0[oq PIISI] a1 YOIYM JO WIOS
‘AJuojoegsies Sunerado 9q 0} POAIOSQO dJom S[ONU0O JO JQUINT Y

B jAs
18 59A102[q0 wWdsAs ay) Jnd 03 sk Yons oIe WSS I} UL SOSSOUYLI A

SO[OIYI A PoIoIsISaIu[ o

“S901)0N 931BY)) AI[BUDJ JO ONSS] ®
'$9A1100[q0 [0NUOD pue seaIR

SUIMO[0] 9} 1OA0O 0} UIMNEMOPUN SBAM NIOM JIpny

»®

JUSWIIOJUT]
[o3u0)
Sunjied

LINHANOAHIANA

NvVddan

Page 65

"JUSUIUIOIIAUD [01U0J 3} daoxduir

0} d[oy p[noys yomgm suonepuswitiosos ¢ Ayuoud om) pue ¢ Ajtoud

U9} POsIel 9ABY 9M BITR ST} UL }IOM JIPNE [BUIOIUL JNO JO }[NSAI B Sy
"(.]eOnLID UOISSIWL JOU, SB POUIJIP ST WSISAS S} JBY} 9)0U oM
y3noyj[e) juswiogeuriu 101UaS £q JJ0 PpAUSIS pue pasijeuly Uusaq jou

pey 9007 toqueidog ur paonpoid ue[g A10A000Y ISISESI(] JBIP V o

pue ‘paiojuour jou
dIoM SUOTOR JOJRNSIUIWIPY SIOJOISY} pue SUOnoe Josn Jo spodol
[ren jipne unt o) d[qissod jou sem 1 ‘Ompowr auo I0j 1dooXi] e

-o)ep 0)-dn-pue 9jeinooe skem[e jou sem uonesrdde oy urgiim
BJEp 1[NSAI © Sk pue Jouuew Ajowr e ul jndur skem[e jou sem vje( e

uvIsAs oYy 03 Indur 90Uo 1901IJO
puooss e Aq poYoayd pue pasLIOYINE ‘PIEA OI0M BIEP IO)SBIU
0} sagueyd [[e jey} dImsud 0} ooe[d Ul JoA JOU DIOM SOINPIOOI] e

‘WOYSAS 91} UO SJUNOJOR IISN DATIOR
pey [[1Us ey} PIYIUSPI SIOABI] 99X} ISEI] Je 0IOM IO, 'SIosn
3unsIXo JO UOHBANORIP PUBR JOUBUIIUIBW JUNOIOE ‘SJUNODOE 1OSh
Jo dn Jumes oy 10§ oor[d ul sompoasord [EULIO) OU SIOM OIOYL e

‘uonesr[dde oy urym asn 10y dn jos Useq pey Jeyl SJUNOOOE
oSN IOJRNSIUIWPY T[ pPue OLOUSS 4] JSBO[ JB J10M IO e

‘uayeOpUN
sydwape uodoy (nyssedonsun yo Funoyuow Jurofuo ou sem QIYJ,

NULINSSY * sSupuyy Loyysmuis

V XION3ddV

adoag

BT JIpNY

60/8002 LHOd3Y LIANV ATIILAVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI ILLIO13A




g ofeyq 60/800T Hodoy[ 1ouen) — ypny [ewsaiu] A2SuLe jo ySnoiog uopuory

Page 66

"BAIE O} U sJoxu00 dAoidur djoy

[[IM JOIyM SUOBPUSWIIO0AI ¢ AJIoud XIS PUB SUOHBPUSUIIONDT
¢ Ajoud ouru posiel 9ABY oM NIOM JIPNE INO JO }NS3I B Sy
'SOSBO papuadsns JO MIIAdL JUSWPSRURWE JR[NSAI OU SEM OI0Y ], e

puR {S901AD AS[SNH UO POPIOdaI 10U d1om
IS} Sk SIOPEAd JU9)SISIAd JO oIeme JOU QIOM SJURISISSY SUDYIE] e

‘dredwoout o1om SNDJ PIPIOA JO SPIOOY e

‘aInjrej 9d1A0p
AMSNH Jo 9seo ul dn-3oeq 10 SWIOJ NDJ [ENUBUL OU I0M JI9Y ], e

‘syjuepuony
Junyreq jo Suwoyuow Alosiatadns Jo Yor[ B sem oIdYUJ e

:opnpout
puUNOJ 9JoM SOSSOUNBIM JIOYM SBATR O], "SI I8 SOAINS[qo wayshs
oY} Jo owos jnd YOIYM SISSIUNBOM dIe OIOY) WIOISAS O UIYIIA

"pestioyine Ajdreridordde o1om spjo-o1ip e
pue ‘A[91enbope papioosar arom sjure[duio)) e

‘sjy1[req oy} ojuo 1qap ays ssed 0} OpIo "dn mo[[o,] e
Ul 1Ino)) Wolj paure}qo sem Eﬁwﬁs B UOIYM JoYe ‘SARD §] IOy PUE STIO-ONIM o
B Joye 9JedYNId) d3IeyD) 0} ‘sAep 7 IOYE I0UM() 0} 010N :
01 ‘SNOdJ wolp paje[eosa Apprendordde orom sjqep Suipueising) e WI0oU[ 10} SUNUNOIDY e

“030]dwo0 218 SPROJUMOP 9T]) 0UO SIIIAP P[OY-PuRy S J SunjIe SjUopISay e

0} PaYOYD Sem “JUouI0IOfUd Furyred 10J pasn ‘WdSAS YOIALD spaddy
. [ ]
Soomop {UOTJOR[[0)) SWOOU] 1904S UQ) »
ASISNH, P[OY-PUBY OJUO DPOPIOIAI QIOM SIOUSJJO Sunye] e R

‘s1os1atodng Sursze Aq o 108 *AI9A000Y] dWOOU] e

SOINOI UL PAISA0D dI9M $3U0Z Fujied Pa[[onuod UIYHM SPROI [V e “on( SWodU[ JO UONROYHUIP] e

URINSSY ssurpury Avy/smers \ adoog gaIe JIpny

§ ERC

V XION3ddV 60/800C LHOd3Y LIANV ATHILIVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI ILLIO13A



; 28y 60/300T Hoday | 1a1en() — JIpny [RuISu] As3urrey Jo ySnoiog uopuo

H
e

Ssed 80°L0°01 809091 [007dS [eads dfeA dy [,
sjudwWwIo)) (reg/ssed) jrodoy JUIWSSISS Y [00YdS ArBmLi]
£111 (1031179 [eulq jo aje(q Jo ae(q

([re3 J0 ssed 1Yy se pariodar ST YoTyM) pIepUR)S oY) ()IM douerdwos 0y spregal
WAL STBYS JUSLIND 9} pue ‘pansst uaoq sey 1odor [euly e a10ym ‘[ I91eNd) UL POYISIA S[OOYDS AIBWILIJ A1) N0 SIOS M079q 9qe] 9y,

9[qrssod se u00s s pajuowe[duIl 018 SUOIEPUSWIIO00T £ JEY) INSUS 0] PIBPUR)S oY) 1o
194 J0u AR JEY) S[00YOS ATRWLL] PUE AIEPUOIIS JUBAS[RL ()M SUISIEI[ OI8 oA "PIepue)s oy} 9AJIYOR ASY) 1B} AINSUO P[NOM YOIYM
9ouapIAa paxnbar oty opiaoxd 0} sjooyds 9[qrud 01 pamof[e Juleq St AWy YNy ‘VouEpIng SIS UM 90UBPIOOOE Ul ‘pIBpUR]S
9y} FUNOIW JOU SE PISSISSE A1 S[O0YDS AIAYA "Syjuow FUImo[[o] pue Anf ur S[OOYDS JOUMNY 0} PI[NPIYDIS dIe SYSIA PUB S[OOYDS
N0 JoYIo Ay} 10} A[N[ UL PANSST oq [[1m HOddI Y "PIEpUL)S o) TUNOOW SB PIsSIsSe Uoaq Sey [00Yds dY} pue pansst Uaaq sey 1odal
SUQ "PI}ISIA U2dQ APBSI[E DALY S[OOYDS AL 983U} JO (%) SOOYDS 67 SIDA00 60/900T U S[00YOS ATBWILL] O} S}ISIA JO S[NPAYDS InQy

Page 67

'010T YOIBIN IST€ 9} AG S[OOYDS JO 2407 e
pue {600T YOI IS € 9Y) Aq S[OOTDS JO 940 e

“800T UOIBIN ISTE 94} Aq S[OOYDS JO %0f o
'SMO[[0] SB SIBOA QOIU) AU} IOAO PISSISSE 9q [[IM S[00YDS dsayy Jey) pouued st i1 SIY} 9AIYIR O, "0 10T YoIeN
1€ £q prepuess oy) jo sjuowarmbai oty joowr Ao} JOYIAYM 0] SE POSSISSE 9q 0} dIB S[OOYDS [eroedg pue Jomun( ‘Sjueju] ‘Arewiid [V

"(SISINA)
S[O0YOS Ul pIepue)§ JUSWSTLURIA [RIOURUL] 9T} JO SjuUdWRImMbos Y1 Yam aouei[duwod Jurjooyd U0 SAJOAUL [1M 60/8007 SuLmp JIom InQ)

:ATewmng pue sjudwssassy SISIALL

V XION3ddVY 60/8002 LHOd3Y LIANV ATYILHVND - LIANY TYNYILNI 3L1I013d



Page 68

60/800T Moday [ 1ouen() — 1pny [ewou] AofuLeyy JO y3norog uopuor|

L 0 0 € 1 4 0 01 I ¢ 9 pajiur]  Jowroyog Jursea’] UOIRIOOSSY SUISnof]
4 ¢ I 1 0 I 0 L 0 g Z | 1enuesqng siredoy Sursnoy Arerodwa |
(SHDIH) s9d1A10g Juswdinby
3 S 4 4 0 C (4 4! 1 6 14 payurg Apunurwoy) pajerdauy Lo3utrey
SINAIIG 8120
1 0 0 9 € ¢ 0 L € 14 0 jenuelsqng S)yaudg Xe [, [I0UN0y) 2 JUISNO
I 0 0 € 0 4 I 4 0 C 4 [enuesqng AANN
0 0 0 € 0 ¢ 0 € 0 € 0 [enuelsqng 193par] [eIoUar) 29 SUNUNOdoYy
0 0 0 (4 [ I 0 4 I I 0 | renuesqng XE T, [Iounoy)
0 9 0 S I 4 0 Ir Tl 610 poyul | sosuadxy 29 [jo1keq
I 0 0 4 I 1 0 £ 4 1 0 [erjueIsqng Jonjuo)) Areyedpng 2 . o189jenS
0 I 0 z 0 Z 0 Y 0 < 0 | renuesqng TuowageueA AInsear],
0 [ 14 I 3 0 S I 1% 0 fenueisqng SI0JIPAIT)y
0 I 0 14 0 v 0 S 0 | S | 0 [ renuesqng sundreooy yse)
1 1% 0 I 0 I 0 9 0 S I fenueisqng S10199(J
dueul|
v 0 0 v 0 ¥ 0 9 0 9 0 Jenueisqng syuowduelry drgsioupie
€ [ I I 0 I 0 9 0 9 0 [enjueisqng sonienby
a3uoqey)
uapuadapuy untodoy [onuo))
0 0 3 b 0 v 0 L 0 | 9 | 1 [ renuesqng 108png % 13png swweidorg
4 1 0 1 0 I 0 9 I ¥ [ [enuelsqng | JUSWOTRURIA JUSUINOO(T PUB JORIIUO))
*SOANNIIXY JOIY))
sjusmuIo)) ssoadoig | dag
uf ION | VIN JIBIOL | € < L pmeeLl ¢ < I
pajuatmojduny A1089)8)
[9A97]
SUONBPUI U0 dURINSSY VARV LIdnV
L£0/9007 dn morjoq

V XIAN3ddV 60/800Z LHOd3Y 11NV ATHILIVND - 1LIANV TYNYILNI 3L11013d




6 25eg 60/800T Hodoy [ 1ouen() — 1Ipny [euisiu] LoSuLie Jo ySnolog uopuor|

SUONBPUSUILIONRI JO uoneuawa[dul pajels saey s100150 ~ pajuswajdwr £preq
U9} U22q 10U Sy UOKOR SATIRUISIE “PISSAIPPE U2 JOU SBY UONEPUSUILIOdI Ay} — pajuswapdurr joN

{SLI Y] SSIIPPE O} USYR) Udq Sy UOLI0. SANBUIRNE 10 ‘WA)SAS oy} ul saSuryd 01 anp a[qeorjdde 103uo] ou SI UOHEPUSTWIOIAL ) — V/N

'sasu0dsal Jo ofduies & POLLIOA OABY 9\ SUOLBPUSUIUO0II JO $501301d oY) UONEIY1I99-§[08 YSNOIY} PajesIpur sey S1ooujo — payudurayduwy

[4 0 0 6 0 14 S I 0 S 9 V/N SONIUNUIO,) I0] [BA(] MON
yioMm 3sanboy

0 [4 0 4 0 [4 0 1.4 I € 0 [renueisqng oFes) rewy
sypny 1i
o)}
o
() Juawaseue 100l01g
(@) ! 0 ! 4 0 [ 0 14 [ 3 0 | [enuelsqng — [1mn,{ 8y} JoJ s[ooydg SuIp[ing
DﬂnM 1 0 I < 0 [4 0 14 ! 3 0 | Tenuesqng S[O0YDS JO TULIONUOTA] [BIOURUL]
1 1% [4 1 0 I 0 8 (4 14 ¢ | lepueisqng s1ed X AfJer :1eiS 2Ing

SIIAIIS S UIIP[IY)

z 0 0 € 0 ¢ 0 S 0 ¥ I | renuesqng juowoIoyuy pue jonuo)) Suryied
SOOIAIOS

S ! 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 ¢ ¢ pajuIy [BjudwuoAUH-A195eS pue yi[eoH
(4 14 0 8 0 € S 14} 0 L L PIIIY JUSUIOZRURIA 9JSE A\
JUSWUOIIAUY]

syuomwo)

.-EM :
] 19N | VIN morl € ]t 1

o ;
pajuouI

z
[dury

>

SHONEPUAWIN09Y

[PAYT
durINSSY

V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATIILIVND - 1IANV TYNYILNI 311107130



01 2824 60/800T Hoday[ [ 1o1end) — 1Ipny [ewIeiuf Ko3uLiey] Jo y3nolog uopuo|

SUOLEPUSUIIOD] JO UoTEjuatadul pajIes ALY s1001j0 — pajuswarduwr Apaeg

"U9YB] U99q 10U SBY UOHOR SANEILIR}[E ‘PISSIIPPE U9Q JOU SBY UONEPUSWILIOIdL oY) — pajuswajdurs joN

“SLL Y} SSIIPPE 0} USYE} U2 SBY UOHOE dATIEUId)[E JO “WISYSAS oY) ul s93ueyd 01 anp d[qesrjdde 105uo] Ou SI UONBPUSUWIOIDI AY] — Y/N

"sasu0dsal Jo o[dures & POYLIOA ABY 94\ “SUONEPUSWIIIONSI JO s501501d o) UONEOYI1LI0-J[9S YSNOIY) PajesIpur sey SI001yJo — pajuswarduy

o
<~
(]
(@)
(4y]
all
€ I 0 S o] o |s ] 6 |o]cs paywry | sopeg onjg — pney-nuy sA1Oe-01q
< C 0 1 0 0 I S ! 4 [enuelsqng SWAISAS ALDD
OSDOmHDO.Sm - m@.::uooo.mﬁw
0 0 v é 0 z 0 9 0 S [enueIsqng JusWIRINOOLJ YN douerduwo))
JUITIUOIIAUT
sypomrmoy | sseagoiyg | dug
. uy CJON P VN (B0 ] ¢ < L {1801 ¢ | ¢
‘ pyuounddmy ; Aro8038) .
- PAT
 SUOPEPUI IO oourRINssy VAV LIdQV
80/L007 dn morroq

V XIAN3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILAVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 3LLIO13A



Page 71

[1928eqd

60/800T Hoday[ Jerren() — ypny [ewraiu] LoSuLiel jo ySnolog uopuo

‘padoteasp Juraq Apuaxmo [enuew
JuSWIMO0I Y} yyum dul] ul pajuswdwr aq fim ssavord siyy
ssa1301g uf

"800 12quIads(] JO pus Aq pasijeur)
aq [ pue padofeasp Suag APUALIND ST [BAURW JUSWISINO0LY Y
ssa1501d U]

pajuswajduuy

Q007 42quiada(] pusy DU prac]

s13eusy

1aforg Aq pojorduion siSIppOYd
[BlUSWUONAUS JOo Mooyo ojdueg ¢

00T 42qUII2(] PUs] “2ulpoa(]
SQINPaV0IJ
JUSTIINDOI] S[qRuIRISng 7

AD1]0J JUSWIdINOO0L] PUB
A3areng Jjueuraimosold ojerodion) |

900¢

LIqeure)sng

90/5007

"sosuadxa [enpPIAIPUT INOUL 0} SoA0[dWId JOJ pasu oy}
20nPal 03 SpIE)) J pue $sa00xd WOWOMO0I] o) 95N 0} SIefrue
198 03 2ALIp © pue Jjoiked ot ySnony) wirepo Jo odA) 9ousISISQNS
pue [eaeL] oyl Jo juowAed SPIEMO} OAOW E O OS[E [[IM ooy}
pa1mbar s201n0sY oY} Jo Ma1AaI & Fuimorjo,] ‘sidrooor Aq paroaoo
9q O} SwIe[> [[e JO} Padu Oy) ULIJUOD OS[e [[IM SIY] ‘PowIe[d
9q ueo Jey) sasuadxa JO S[2AJ] pue suonemIs oY) U0 sadko[duio pur
sioFeuey 03 onsst 03 soueping Suuedord oq M [ouUOSIag Swn
swies ay} 1y "9A0qe pauonuaw sad4) o) Jo (ovo I0J QU0 ‘SULIO]
wrep mou Juwedard jo ssoooxd oYy ur st weoy poddng YH oYL

‘sasuadxo Furwieo s1oxrop Aousdy (o ‘(1500 oy
Surwreo-o1 st pue AJLIoyIny oY) Jo Jjeyeq uo Juiyowos paseyoind
sey ookojduie ue oxoyMm) dsuadxe sSaUISNG IOYIO (q DOULISISQNS
pue joAeI] 10} sosuddye oofojdwo summuoS (e ‘osuodxo
Jo sod£y jounsip ore 2y tey pewSiySry sey j| ‘ysed Aned
y3noxy) pred pue pawre(d Suraq sesuadxo oY) JO MITASI € UIdaq 01
JJe1s voueur] yum jouwr Apesife SARY [QUUOSIOJ JO SoAnRIUssaIday

ssargoid Uy

60/800¢ -auljpvacy
‘sjuowiAed

swrero asuadxs s8eurut 0} [[oikeJ 10}
padojaaap Sutaq st sse00xd ourjuo uy

90°c0'1¢

sasuadxy 29 [jo1deg

2)epd()/sjuommio)

S0/¥007

snje)q/ssalgod g

utipeay
uogwnowaduy
[BUISLIO

SHONEPUSIWI0IY
I forg
Jo quny

vaIy Jipny

SHONBPUIWW03IY | AJrioLi] Jo uoneyuwdwadury - y10doy ssaaSoag pajreso(q

V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILAVND - LIANV TYNYILNI 311107134




Page 72

7198

60/800T Moday [ 1auen) — ypny [euwrojuy LsSuLefy Jo y3nolog uopuo

‘Jeuonerado aq 01 aperddn soj Jumore
pue (12qo1p( Afjeunrou) siarjddns oY) woxy o[npayos asesar o)
A ouI] UL ‘80T 1oquieda(] Aq papeiddn oq [Iim aremjos oy ey

Q007 42qu20a(] 2uypva(]
sidweye uoJo[ pryeaur
asnnadar Suimorjoy sseooe jusaaid

pajoadxa st 31 ‘s1orddns aremijos oy 03 Juos ULaq dary sisanboy A[[nJ 0 IOPIO WI WAISAS Sif} 109100 8007 wd)SAQ JUIWISRUBTA]
ssorord u] | o} smorddns oremyos 03 jsenboy | Aepy /8utoduQ 1 ST XAIOL
8007 Toquiaydog 8007 42quiaidag autjpvacy
Aq oA1] 03 M woysAs pue sserSoxd ur Auormo st opeiddp ‘woreorjdde Suruue)d-o oy ugm g0, uny suiuue(g
sso13014 uf | S[onuo) sseooy [eord07 poaoiduiy pue 90,02(I I -9 pue uonedddy ueiqr
‘Juawdojassp
ur Apuarino A301eNg 11 943 UIYIAM POPR[OUE 3q [[IA ST T, 60/800C -2utjpvaq 80/L00T
$s213014 Ul A30)B1)G SUOHROTUNUIOA[O], | ) PUB 9(),99(] I UOHBIIUNUWWOINI],
800C Aoquiada(] puy -outpvaq
"podofoasp Sureq APUSIING [ENUEW JUSWRINI0I] 000°00$3F Jo
oy YA duxp ur pajuswelduwr oq [im ssacoxd sy, pajurodde | onfea pioysery oy aaoqe sposfoxd
uooq  Apuaoar sey 1oSeuejy juowdo[ead(] Ajiqeurelsng v | UL poAfoAur oq 01 IoSeuepy
ssardoid uf | juowdoeaaq  Anjiqeureisng b
; uipraq SUONEPUIIW 000y
; uoneywowajduny 1 Ajutonig
3@&%&;&%&@@ snirig/ssoador g [BuIsSLIO Jo pquny BV Npny
V XION3ddVY 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILYVND - 11aNV TYNYILNI 311107134




Page 73

¢ o8eq 60/8007 Hoday | Ia1end) - npny [eurauy Lo3uLiel] jo ysnoiog uopuor|

“wopSury panun) YLy VO UOPUOT 0211§ I01N0sUOIS | Ino)
1911N09U01S 1901JO PAISISITNY 7Y $]SH IOqUINU PaIeIsIZal YNm so[epy pue pue[Sus] ur paio)sidol ST pajiwr] PNy [EWIu] 10109¢ oIjqnd AYdNoJ, 2 aNIofe(f

"PoAIOSOI SIYBLI [V "PANWI PN [BUIDIU] 10}09S OHqn YN0, %3 aMOR(T $0070

"WISIO A NSIWIYO ], S4ONno I aNI0[a(] Y} Aq 10U
PUE SOEI[IJJE [0 SILIIPISNS SOy} JO SULIY JOGUISW oY) Aq POPIACId oIe SIOIAIOS "SIWRU PAIR[AI JOYIO 1O ¢ NSTEWO ], AYONO], SPIO[O(T,, ,SYONO ] % SNIO[A(L,,
“ontop(,, sowreu ay) Japun Juneiado Anus [e39] juepuedopur pue ojeredss B SI SWLI QUG oY) JO YOBF "SUOISSIUIO 1O SJOB S IO Yord 10§ AJiqer| Aue
Sey S JOqUISUI )1 JO AUE I0U NSIEUIYO, ], SYONO [, SNIO[A(] IOYILAU “YoNS ST ‘PUB ‘(UOHBIOOSSE) UIIA SSIMS B S NSIEWYO ], 9YoNO ] SWIO[(] MSIEWYO, [, SYono |
ONIO[R( JO WL JOqUIST WIOPSULY PIIUM) oY) ST YOI ‘T SYINOL % SNIO[A(] JO ATeIpisqns € SI Pajwr] PNy [BUISIU] J0)99S OI[qNJ dYonoy, % antofa(]

PONWIIT PY [BUIIU] 10303G OI[qnd SYON0 J, 79 S1HO[o(] 0} SAOUAISJAT 258 OJIO[3(] 0] SIOUSIIJoI JUSWNOOP SI} U]
800z4Ine

uopuoy

PRI PN [DULJUT AO)IDE INGHJ dYINO | B 2310)9¢]

"WRISAS [0NUOD [BUISNUL S[GRI[AI B JO QOUBUSJUIBUI I}
103 Jueproduir st juowoeuLU AQ SUOHEPUIUWONDL N0 JO Uoneuowadul A[QWI) PUE SANOSJJT "SIUSINOOP 053y JO Ayonusyine oy} 2INsUd 0] pue yIom JIpne
1o jo sssodind oy 10§ suondesUEN) puk SPI0AI FUNUNOOIE JIAY) O] $S300 [[nf s opraoid 0} JuswSeuRW WO A[OI OM YoNS SB pue 2ouedIUSIS pue JSLI j$o)essd
Jo Bureq se juowoFeurw £q PAYHUSP! SB SESIR UO SNO0J 0} paudisap a1e sompoooid Jpne [ewou] "prexy 2AISn{[oo jsurede jooud oq jou Aew pug oouBInSSE
aIn[osqe jou pue d[qeuosedr apiaoid A[uo ues [0NU0d [BUIAUL JO SWOISAS PUNOS USAY SOULIB[NSOLI IO pnerj Jo Auqgissod o) 0} spieSex aaey o1 pasnbox
oIe HIOM JI3Y) SUnONpuod Ul ‘sioppny “AJIRM3aLl 10 Pelj JO SIOUBISWNOID B AJUSpI 0} uodn Por[aI 10U S[ONU0d [BUISIUL UI SasSAD oM pue syiSuans
[e AJnuopt o) uodn Paf[ax 2q JOU PINOYS JIPNE [ewINul Aq pouriofrad IoM pue JUSWSSEURHT (Im S)Sol SORLIL[NSALIL JSYI0 PUR Phef JO UONOJep puk uonuaadsd
oY) pue S[ONU0d [eUIANUL JO WaisAs punos e 10§ Ayjiqisuodsar oy jeys esiseydwo oAy ‘seonoerd jusweSeurw punos jo uoneorjdde oy 10} senmIqisuodsar
S JUSWATEURUI I0] S)MIISQNS B SB USYP) 9q 10U P[NOYS PUE JOU ST SIOM JIPAL [BUIOIUI JO souewiofred oy pajuswsjduwi are £y 910Joq Jorduwy [0y 119Y) 0] nok
Aq passasse oq pNoys SJUSWA0IdWII 10] SUOHEPUIITIOY “Opeur oq JYSIut jey) sjuowdAoIduwr [TB 10 ISTX2 J ) SOSsouyeam ay) [[e JO 1uauiele)s oArsueyaIdwod
& ALIESSO00U JOU SIE PUB MIOM JIPNE [BWISUI INO JO 9SMOD 37} SULINP UOHUSNE INO 0} SWed yomym asoy) Aquo ase podor sy} Ul pasiel SIONEW Sy

“M0[3q 110 Jos suonewIf 31 Jo siseq oty uo paredard st yowgm 11odar sty 105 Apiqisuodsar oxe) op
ANMIqisuodsay Jo Juswd)e)g

V XION3ddV 60/8002 LYOd3Y LIANV ATHILIVND - LIANV TVNYILNI 3LLIO13A



Page 74

Z jo | ebed

paubisey sakojdwg

4/49

Wep gH % 10
reinBa.i| paebojy

Buipuad uoisioeq

pabpo 13
4/4d
jeaddy
1e pjeydn |essiwsiqg uolneoydde
Buisnoy JuswiuolIAUg
passiwsi( L L L Jejnbauj pabayy ueqin
swieo
SWIMOAC JeinbaLll $90IN0S9Y
paubisey eaAojdwy 1 L L Jo uonebs|y ajesodion
3oIs
1O Isliym Buiiom
pessiwsiq saAojdwig L L L areaud paba)y
pabpoT 13
pabebus 4/9 S99oINOg
-84 — pJesay jeaddy Aunwwon
pneJj Buisnoy pue
pessiwsi b L L jo uonebally | ainyn) ‘Ynpy
uonebiyseau|
Areuydiosiqg
o} Josigns 80/90/0€
(umouy S192140 Je usnoid | pajebiiseaul
§) (3) enjep | awoonQ Areuydiosiq JO "ON S8SEeD JO "ON | sase? jo 'ON | adA] Auenbauy ajeioloalqg

80/£00¢ WOHAH /4 ® 8002/90/0€ - 80/¥0/1L0 AILVDILSIANI SAILIHVINDIHYI — 1IANY ISNOH NI

g XION3ddVY




Page 75

Z jo z sbed

0P0°L3 S G 9 [ejoj
1die004
-uou Jo swiejo
0v0°'L3 V/N V/N V/N L senbayo Hg oyioads-uoN
uonebiseau]
Areuydiosig
o0} Jo8lqns 80/90/0¢€
(umouyy S199J0O Je uanoid | pajebisaaul
§) (3) enjep | swoonQ Areuyidiosiq JO "ON S8SEeD JO "ON | Sose9 Jo "ON | adA) Aenbauyj ajeloloanqg

80/200¢ WOH4 d/8 8 8002/90/0€ - 80/¥0/1L0 AJLVDILSIANI SIILIHVINDIHYI — LIANY ISNOH NI

g XION3ddV




Page 76

Z jo | abed

80-G0-8¢ 8002 Ae\ uaJpfiyp Joj ebueyn nd SdAD| 2
80-G0-8¢2 800¢ Aen awdojers @ woddng sseuisng ngd SdAD| €2
80-G0-82 8002 AeiN uoIsnjou| pue spiepuels |[ooyos Nngd SdAD| 22
80-50-8¢ 8002 Aepy saljiwe @ usipjiyo ngd SdAD| ¢
(SdAD) @288
80-G0-8¢ 8002 AeN aoIeg s,9/doad BunoA pue uaipjiyn 1deq s,9|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyn| 0z
80-90-0¢ 80 aunp seoinMes Apedold srelodio) Nnd HO| 61
80-90-61 g0 aunp usweIno0.d ajesodion ng 4ol gL
80-90-21 80 sunp JuswebeUBIA YSIYH B 1PNy ngd 40| /|
80-90-G1 80 sunp 90ueUl{ 81eJodio) nd d0| 91t
80-90-0¢ 80 sunp uolexe| [e007 @ sljeusg nd 40| Gt
80-90-0¢ 80 sunp SBOIAIBS JBallolsny ngd HO| Vi
80-90-0¢ 80 sunp S90IAIBS ) ngd d0| ¢t
80-90-0¢ 80 sunp S90IAIOG [ebe] ng 40| 2l
80-/0-€ 80 aunp $824n0saYy ajes0dion 1deq (4D) seoinosay sjelodion| ||
80-90-81 80 sunp Bujuies ® Juswdojensq euonesiueBbio ngd ao-3o| ol
80-90-81 80 aunp Hoddng Jequisiy pue Aoeioowa( [2207] ng ao-3I1n 6
80-90-81 80 sunp $80.N0saY uewny nd ao-30 8
juswdojana(
80-90-81 80 sunp juswdojenaq jeuonesiuebio 1deqg [euonesiuebio - 39 /
80-10-G¢2 80 [udy 8duewIOHed pue juswaoiduwi nd Oddd -390 9
80-+0-G2 80 Judy suoljeolunwiwo) nd Oddd - 3D S
80-70-52 80 |idy JuswisBeuey pooyinoqybieN ng Oddd-30| +
80-1¥0-G2 80 [udy ssljjunwwo) Jejeg nd Oddd -30 €
uoiesIuNWWon uopeolunwwo?) @ sdiysieupe
80-¥0-G2 80 |udy  sdiysisupe asueunouad Ao1jod 1deg aoueulopad Aoljod — 39 2
80-70-v 80 yolepy Jeysibay ejelodion 8jeiodion a0 - srelodio) L
upne ojepdn ;
0} pauinjai Adoo a1eq| JU8281 JSowW Jo aleq o1 191s1bay [one] Juswpedaq 3
800¢ sunp -Je se snjelg

a xipuaddy

Atewwng sjepdn 193siBay ysiy - | 1openp Jodey ssalboid




Page 77

Z Jo z abed

80-90-02 80 aunr JuswaIojug ngd an|  vel
80-90-¢£2 80 aunp luswdoyane( g Aoljod Buiuuelq ng an| e¢
80-90-€2 80 aunp S90IAISG BUIUOIH nd an| ee
80-90-¥2 80 aunp BuisnoH Ayunwwog g oibeieng ng an| e
80 |udy JuswiuoliAUg ueqin 1daq (3n) wawuonauz uequn| o¢
80-90-81 80 aunp ainyng xR seueiqr] ‘buiuies| npy ng SO0V| 62
80-90-81 80 aunp S90S UolEBI08Y ng SO0V| 82
80-90-81 80 aunp S80IMSS 1INpY ng SO0V| /2
80-90-81 80 aunp Absjens @ Buluoissiwwon ng SO0V| 9¢
(SD0V) sedinies
80 |udy| seolneg Ajunwwo)) pue ain}jny synpy deg| Ayunwwo) pue ainyny sUnpy! Gz
upne ajepdn N
0} pauinjei Adoo ejeq| jusoal Jsow jo ajeq a1 Jo)s1bay [oAaT] swypedaq

a xipuaddy

Arewwng ajepdn JsysiBay ysiy - | Jeyeny jJoday ssalboud



Page 78

Appendix C
Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis April 2008 to June 2008

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 April 2008 - 30 June 2008.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

e hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts

e are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend

Adults, Culture & Comfnunity Services | AS

- The Children & Young Péople’s Service | | C
Corporate Resources | CR
kPkéopIé & ’(k)rg’a“nisati’onalk Dévelopment - PO
Policy, Performance, Partnership & Corhms PP
Urbar’i’ Environment | - UEk
Haringey Council  HGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

e Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

» Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently
Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

e Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

e Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

» Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

e Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

| of 6



Page 79

Disciplinary Cases

Appendix C

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary

procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Directorate ; | Cases Closed Cases Op'en ; No‘of cases No of employees
AS 11 5 i 16 14

C 6 5 | 11 11

CR 3 10 ‘ 13 12

PO 0 0 0 0

pp 1 0 1 1

UE 7 6 | 13 13

HGY | 28 26 | 54 51

Please, note that the total number of cases is 54, but this only represents 51 employees.
The reason being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently.
For example, an employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

» Urban Environment has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at

1.91%

e 26 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

20f 6

Stage Cases Closed  Cases Open Total %
Invest. - not suspended 11 a 5ﬁ 16 11
Invest. - suspended 13 17 30 13
o , o | ; N
Appeal | § 2 | 3 : 5 2 |
Total | 28 2 | 54 28




Page 80

* The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 35%

3ofé

Appendix C
The following table identifies the outcomes of the 28 cases that were concluded.
Disciplinary Case Outcomes
Invest. -
Invest. - Invest. - Invest. -
Outcome not Total %
suspended suspended appeal ET |
Appeal dismissed 0 0 0 0 0 0
Appeal upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dismissal 1 6 0 0 7 25
No action 3 0 0 0 3 11
Other 0 0 1 2 3 11
Part upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0
Verbal warning 2 0 0 0 2 7
Written waming 4 0 1 0 ’5 18
Final writ warning 1 1 0 0 2 7
Resigned 0 4 0 0 4 14
Suspension lifted 0 2 0 0 2 7
Reiegaﬁon/Demoti,on 0 0 0 0 0 0
- Total 11 13 2 2 28 100
* In 18% of cases the employee received a Written Warning
e 25% of cases resulted in Dismissal
This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.
Reasons for Disciplinary Cases
| Reason Cases Open Cases Closed Total % |
Assault 1 1 2 4
Attendance 4 0 4 7
Behaviour 7 12 19 35
Fraud / Theft 9 5 14 26
Misuse of resources 1 0 1
Negligence 0 3 3
Other 4 7 11 20
Total 26 28 54 100




Page 81

This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

*  26.5% of the workforce is male, but the male representation of the disciplinary cases is

Disciplinary Case employee rebresentation
by Ethnicity and Gender

Female Male All
_EthnicClass  Total %  Total %  Total %
B&ME 23 575 17 425 40 784
White 7 636 4 364 11 216
Total 30 588 21 412 51 100

significantly higher at 41.2%

Appendix C

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band

(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total disciplined employees in Directorate)

4 of 6

o, Ethnic MANUAL SC1-SC5 SC6-S02 PO1-PO3  PO4-PO7 PO8+  TOTAL
Grop T WF T WF T WF T WF T WF T WF T  WF
B&ME 1 71 3 214 8 214 1 74 1 74 0 00 9 643

AS  White 1 74 2 143 1 71 1 71 0 00 0 00 5 357
Total 2 148 5 357 4 286 2 143 1 71 0 00 14 100
B&ME 2 182 2 182 4 34 1 91 1 91 0 00 10 909

C White 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 1 91 0 00 1 o1
Tota 2 182 2 182 4 34 1 91 2 182 0 00 11 100
B&ME 6 50 0 00 5 417 0 00 1 83 0 00 12 100

CR White 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00
Tota 6 50 0 00 5 47 0 00 1 85 0 00 12 100 |
BaE o e o T e e L B TR

PO White 0 0 o0 o 0o 0 o0 o 0 0o 0
Total 0o o0 o0 o o o o i 86 0 0 0 0
B&ME ©0 00 ©0 00 0 00 1 10 0 00 0 00 1 100

PP White 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 O 00 0 00

| Total 0 00 ©0 00 0 00 1 10 0 00 0 00 1 100
B&ME 0 00 4 308 1 77 8 281 0 00 0 00 8 615

UE Whitte 0 00 3 281 2 154 0 00 0 00 0 00 5 385
Total 0 00 7 588 3 281 3 281 0 00 0 00 13 100
B&ME 9 176 9 176 13 255 6 118 3 59 0 00 40 784

HGY White 1 20 5 98 3 59 1 20 1 20 0 00 11 216

| Total 10 196 14 275 16 314 7 137 4 78 0 00 51 100




Suspensions

Page 82

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases
Case status ) | Total |
~No. of cases heard 9
No. of cases not conduded | 17
No. of cases not concluded - leaver | 4
Total B | 30

Of the 30 suspensions, 9 cases have been heard.

Appendix C

The table below looks at the 30 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated

from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension and the maximum

days for a single case.

Timescales of Suspension Cases

Directorate ;;32 16 ;{) ‘ 11281)— 12?0- 213; c_:raos:[:Is ;:)St:ls |
Days days days ; ~heard

AS 6 2 1 0 0 9 3

C 3 3 0 0 2 8 4

' CR 3 1 O 0 4 8 1

PO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

| PP 0 0 0] 0 0 0 | 0

UE ‘1 1 3‘ 0 0 ‘5 1

HGY 13 7 4 0 6 | 30 9

Jotal cases 5 3 2 0 2 NA  NA

Total no. of
days taken Avg. Max.
for all days days
cases ~
426 47 128
1024 128 359
1179 147 253
0 0 0
0 0 0
487 97 146
3116 104 359
N/A N/A N/A

In this quarter, on average, 104 days were spent on each suspension case. This is a further 7 day
decrease compared to the previous quarter of 111 days.

50fé



Page 83
Appendix C

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

450 +
400
350 |
300
250 -
200 |
150 |
100 -
50 -

W

(9]

w
{ | W
1 O
|l o

AS C CR UE HGY

Avg. days Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

Average and maximum days taken for suspension cases per quarter
200
160
120
80
40
0
Jul07 - Sep07 Oct07 - Dec07 Jan08 - Mar08 Apr08 - Jun08
; Total Numbér of Cases @ Average Days per Case

The average number of days taken per suspension case has fallen further since the last quarter,
showing the benefit of the extra scrutiny and focus on management action that is continuously ongoing.

Although this is good and reflects that we have made an improvement from this time last year, the
Council still aims to lower the average number of days taken per case to 70 days.

6of6



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey C

Agenda item: [N 0.]

Audit Committee On 22 July 2008

Report Title: Report on the work of the Audit Committee 2007/08

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of the proposed report to Full Council in respect of the
work undertaken by the Audit Committee during 2007/08.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Audit Committee approves the draft report on the work of the Committee
during 2007/08.

2.2 That the final version of the report is presented to the next available Full Council
meeting for information.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

R N

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringev.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
3.1 Audit Committee Agendas and Minutes 2007/08




Page 86

4.. Introduction

4 .1 Haringey Council’s Audit Committee has been established for a number of years,
in accordance with best practice, with agreed Terms of Reference which match
CIPFA guidance. In fulfilling its Terms of Reference the Audit Committee produces
an annual report of the work it has completed during the year which is submitted to
a meeting of the Full Council for information.

5. Reporting Process

5.1 In 2007/08, Members requested that a draft version of the Committee’s annual
report be presented to the Audit Committee to ensure that all Members had the
opportunity to review and provide input to the report.

5.2 The draft annual report of the Audit Committee is attached as Appendix A to this
report. The draft report has been compiled using the agreed minutes of the
2007/08 municipal year. During this year, the Audit Committee met on five
occasions: 26 June, 10 July, and 29 October 2007; 28 January and 12 May
(deferred from 28 April due to the elections) 2008.

5.3 Agreed recommendations and Member comments, where appropriate, have been
included to reflect the discussion and outcome of the meetings. The report is
structured against agreed headings, rather than chronological order to prevent
repetition and duplication.



Page 87

Appendix A

1. Background

1.1The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee require it to maintain an overview
of the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and the regulatory
framework; internal control; risk management; and internal and external audit. This
report has been produced to advise Full Council of the matters considered by the
Audit Committee at its meetings during the municipal year 2007/08, in fulfiiment of
its Terms of Reference. It is presented to Full Council for information.

1.2 The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four times per year in accordance
with the Council’s reporting and financial cycles. During 2007/08, the Committee
has met on five occasions and each meeting was quorate.

1.3To support members in their role, officers provided a briefing session on the
function, status, responsibilities and role of the audit committee. The Council’s
Section 151 Officer (or his deputy) and Head of Audit and Risk Management were
in attendance at each meeting. The Council’s external auditors, The Audit
Commission, attended the Committee to present, amongst other reports, their
Annual Audit and Inspection Letter.

2. Summary

2.1 The Audit Committee takes its responsibilities very seriously and considers its role
in enhancing the Council's internal control environment, which is considered
effective by both internal and external audit, to be significant in assisting the Council
achieve the highest possible rating as part of the Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA) process. During 2007/08, key achievements for the Committee
were:

» Contributing to the CPA process and assisting the Council achieve a score of 3
out of 4 for Internal Control as part of the Use of Resources assessment;

e Providing input into to the Internal Audit function thorough review and approval
of the annual audit plan and quarterly review process, including monitoring
implementation of audit recommendations as part of the formal follow up
reporting process;

* Reviewing and approving the Council’s internal audit strategy; and

e Contributing to and approving the Council’s Statement of Internal Control.

2.2 The following sections describe the work of the Audit Committee in relation to the
key tasks identified within the committee’s agreed Terms of Reference which were
in effect during 2007/08.

3. Corporate Governance and regulatory framework

3.11In performing their role in this area, the Audit Committee consider the actions taken
by the Council’s managers, who are responsible for ensuring adequate systems of
control and assurance are in place, and receive information during the course of the
year in order to discharge their responsibilities.



Page 88

3.2During 2007/08, the Committee fulfilled this responsibility by reviewing and
approving the Council’'s Annual Governance Statement (AGS). The Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2006, require the Council to review the effectiveness of its
systems of internal control and to publish an AGS each year, with the financial
statements. The Audit Committee are the lead body for this and are able to
discharge this duty by receiving at their meetings, reports relating to the key areas
of Internal Audit; Risk Management; External Audit; and Housing Benefit Counter-
Fraud activity. In 2007/08, the Committee made recommendations at its meeting on
12 May 2008 which were incorporated into the final AGS and published with the
Council’'s financial statements.

3.3In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed the Council’s draft Local Code of
Corporate Governance (LCCG) which was presented to its meeting on 12 May
2008. Members recommended changes to the draft LCCG, including the need to
reflect the political reality of having an opposition party, and providing greater clarity
in relation to the distinctions between the ruling party, the opposition and
committees, such as the Audit and Pensions Committees, where all Members
worked together for the best interests of the taxpayers. The changes were
incorporated into the LCCG prior to presentation at Full Council for formal adoption.

3.4Members reviewed and approved the 2007/08 annual audit plan at the Audit
Committee meeting on 26 April 2007, part of the 2006/07 Municipal year. Members
were satisfied that the plan was appropriate to deal with the Council’s key risks. The
Head of Audit and Risk Management provided the Committee with quarterly reports
on performance against this plan and a summary of key findings and
recommendations for individual audits. This provided the Committee with assurance
that any significant weaknesses were being addressed by management. The
Committee noted that no key financial systems were provided with a ‘no’ or ‘limited’
assurance rating during 2007/08.

3.5The Audit Committee received and considered the 2007/08 annual audit and
inspection plan from the Council’s external auditors, which had been issued jointly
by the Audit Commission and RSM Robson Rhodes (now Grant Thornton) at the
meeting on 10 July 2007. The Committee raised a number of issues relating to the
plan and questioned whether the actions highlighted in the plan with regard to the
social services and ICT were achievable. The Audit Committee also requested the
Chief Financial Officer to ensure compliance with specific issues relating to the
plan, including risks with regard to the operations conflict between the BSF
programme and the existing PFIl schools and the management issues relating to
Alexandra Palace and Park to safeguard the overall issues of tax-payers as well as
the Council.

3.6 The Audit Committee received quarterly reports on counter-fraud activity relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit from the Deputy Head of Benefits and
Local Taxation. In order to ensure that the Committee fulfilled its Terms of
Reference, Members requested that information on payments made and resultant
overpayments be included in all quarterly reports after the first report was reviewed
and this was completed. Members raised concerns about whether sufficient
resources were in place to prevent fraud at the outset and were advised that
verification processes were in place to ensure the risk was minimised and that the



Page 89

procedures had been reviewed by the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate and were found
to be adequate.

3.7Members were advised that, at the end of 2007/08, the Housing Benefit service had
achieved a good performance against targets and a CPA rating of 4 (excellent).
Members were advised of a Housing Benefit anti-fraud and corruption strategy
which had been drafted and recommended that this be subject to further review and
input from relevant Members to ensure that the strategy was effective.

3.8Members also received details of the inspection by the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate
and the 20 recommendations made as a result. Members expressed concerns
about the emphasis of targets, set by the Department for Work and Pensions, on
fraud rather than benefit take up and were advised that income maximisation in
respect of benefit take up was a Council priority. Members raised concerns that the
emphasis from the Council appeared to focus on fraud, rather than benefit take up,
but were assured that the Council’s procedures met central government standards
and requirements and the Council had a clear responsibility to both prevent and
detect fraud.

4. Risk Management

4.1 The Audit Committee are responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of systems for
the assessment and management of material areas of risk within Haringey and
monitoring their maintenance and development in accordance with the Council’s
Risk Management strategy. In order to fulfil this responsibility, the Audit Committee
has received regular reports during 2007/08 on the Council's Risk Management
framework, together with summary details of business unit and departmental risk
registers. The Council's corporate risk register was presented to the Audit
Committee twice yearly for review.

4.2 At its meeting on 12 May 2008, the Audit Committee reviewed the proposed new
risk management framework for the Council which set out how all the various
processes involving risk, including health and safety, business continuity,
emergency planning and business planning would be drawn together and
managed. Members questioned if all areas of the Council had risk registers in place
and the Head of Audit and Risk Management confirmed that all Business Units and
Departments had these in place. Members also questioned who was responsible
for monitoring that risk registers were kept up to date and were advised that
Business Unit managers and Directors were responsible, but that Internal Audit
completed regular checks on risk registers as part of the annual audit plan.
Members were also advised when each risk register was last updated and
reviewed as part of the regular reports to the Audit Committee. Members were
satisfied with the assurances given on the Council's compliance with the risk
management framework.

5. Internal Audit
5.1Internal Audit is provided primarily by an outsourced function, through a contract

awarded to Deloitte and Touche, and supplemented by in-house staff undertaking
investigations into allegations of fraud and financial irregularities.



Page 90

5.2During 2007/08, Internal Audit completed 91 reviews across all Council
directorates, including schools and individual social services establishments, with
76 final reports and 16 draft reports having been issued at the year end. Quarterly
reports on progress against the annual audit plan were provided to the Audit
Committee throughout the year. The Chair of the Audit Committee commented on a
number of areas during the year which were highlighted by the audit
recommendations made and which he considered needed to be addressed.
Members were given assurance that appropriate action would be taken.

5.3In 2006/07, Members requested that Internal Audit provide detailed reports on the
implementation of audit recommendations as part of the agreed follow up
programme. The provision of detailed reports on the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations continued throughout 2007/08 and Members were advised that,
at the end of the year, 93% of all Priority 1 recommendations had been fully
implemented, with the remaining 7% in progress. Members wanted to ensure that
all outstanding recommendations were addressed and required officers to take
appropriate action to resolve any issues and provide the Committee with target
dates for final implementation. Revised target dates and reports monitoring
compliance with these were presented to the Committee. The Committee
subsequently agreed that the actions taken were considered reasonable.

5.4The Committee also considered reports detailing investigations into financial
irregularities. During 2007/08, Members noted that 26 investigations had been
completed, but were concerned about the effect of officers being suspended from
duty while investigations were completed. Members were advised that Internal
Audit worked closely with Human Resources to manage the cases as quickly and
effectively as possible. In addition, performance information on the length of time
taken to complete investigations was included in the quarterly reports for 2007/08 to
provide Members with further information in this area.

5.5In compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations, the Committee received a
report on the effectiveness of internal audit. This assessment was completed as
part of a reciprocal peer review process with the Royal Borough of Kensington &
Chelsea and Waltham Forest LBC. Members noted that Haringey’s internal audit
function had been assessed as effective in comparison to the CIPFA Code of
Practice. Members questioned the role of the Audit Committee in the decision
making process and were advised of the Terms of Reference for the Committee
and the opportunity that these presented to make recommendations and require
explanations from officers.

5.6 The Audit Committee received the Council’s annual internal audit plan and audit
strategy at its meeting on 12 May 2008. Members questioned the level of resources
allocated to the review of key financial systems and questioned whether these
should be reviewed and more allocated to higher risk areas. Members were advised
that resources were allocated on a risk basis and that changes to key financial
systems took place every year which had to be reviewed. Members were also
advised that external audit required an annual assessment of the effectiveness of
the key financial systems and it was more cost-effective to use internal audit
resources to complete this. Members were also advised of resources which were
allocated to high risk areas including project management and procurement. The



6.

Page 91

Chair was satisfied with the assurances of the Chief Financial Officer that the
internal audit plan complied with standards required by CIPFA.

External Audit

6.1 The Council's external audit service in 2007/08 was provided by Robson Rhodes

(subsequently merged with Grant Thornton), although the Audit Commission
continued to complete work on the Council’s statement of accounts and CPA Use of
Resources assessment. The Council’s external auditors attended all of the Audit
Committee meetings during the year. The Audit Committee has received reports and
presentations from the Audit Commission and Grant Thornton during the year to
assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities in this area.

6.2 The Audit Commission’s report on the Use of Resources auditor judgements was

presented to the Committee on 12 May 2008. Members noted the improvements in
ratings that the Council had received for Value for Money, to 3 out of 4 in the Use of
Resources assessments and overall that the Council had retained its score of 3 out
of 4 overall for the Use of Resources assessment. However, the Committee noted
that the overall score in the theme of Financial Reporting had dropped from a 3 to a
2, largely as a result of the Council not maintaining its ‘notable practice’ status
achieved the previous year. Members noted the issue raised in relation to capital
budget underspends and expressed disappointment in the Financial Reporting score.
Members requested officers to ensure that action was taken to address the issues
raised. The Audit Committee received a report setting out the planned actions to
address the Audit Commission’s recommendations made in their Use of Resources
judgement. Members noted that although the Use of Resources test was getting
more difficult each year, their expectation was that the Council should be focused on
achieving a score of 4 out of 4.

6.3 The Audit Committee received the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter from the Audit

7.

Commission at its meeting on 12 May 2008. The issues and recommendations
raised were discussed with the Audit Commission and Members expressed concern
about the wording of specific improvement opportunities included in the Letter and as
no recommendations had been raised to address the issue. Members were advised
that the improvement opportunities were linked to the Use of Resources judgement.
Members noted that two areas of potential risk had been included in Grant
Thornton’s work and requested that action was taken to resolve these.

Statement of Accounts 2006/07 and Accounting Policies

7.1 At the meeting on 10 July 2007, Members received a report on the accounting

policies which were in operation during 2006/07. The Committee were concerned
over some aspects of the accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
financial statements. The Committee were advised that the accounting policies
would form part of the external audit review of the financial statements and any
issues would be reported back to the Committee. No issues were subsequently
raised by the external auditors.

Other issues



Page 92

8.1 Members wished to ensure that they had the necessary skills and training to be able

to fulfil their roles appropriately. The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to
ensure that appropriate training and briefing sessions were put in place for Members
of the Committee. During 2007/08 separate training sessions were provided on the
roles of internal and external audit, the role of the Audit Committee and risk
management.

8.2 The Audit Committee was subject to a review of its effectiveness during 2007/08, in

accordance with the recommendations of the CIPFA Guidance on Public Sector
Audit Committees. The review was undertaken by the Head of Audit and Risk
Management, in consultation with Members and recommendations made in order to
comply with best practice and guidance. Members were satisfied with the outcome of
the review and the implementation of the recommendations which would continue in
2008/09.

8.3 The Interception of Communications Commissioner's Office (ICCO) visited Haringey

8.

8.1

9.1

in 2007 to inspect the Council’s policies and procedures in relation to the Regulation
of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). The Audit Committee was informed of the
Inspector’s findings at their meeting on 28 January 2008. The ICCO reported that the
Council complied with the requirements of RIPA and that the Council’'s arrangements
for compliance were adequate. Members were satisfied with the Council’s response
to the recommendations made, all of which had been implemented.

Conclusion
Over the last year the Audit Committee has fulfilled its terms of reference and
presented a challenge in relation to the Council's system of internal control and
financial reporting arrangements. Over the next 12 months it is intended that the
proposed developments will continue to enhance and develop the Committee’s role
and provide an effective challenge to all areas of the Council.

Recommendations

That this report is received by Full Council for information.



Page 93 Agenda Iltem 14

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N O-]

Audit Committee On 22 July 2008

Report Title: Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of RIPA and its operation in practice within Haringey.

2. Recommendations
2.1 That the Audit Committee notes the contents of the report.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 List of background documents:
The following background documents were used in production of this report:
e RIPA 2000
e Reports of the OSC and ICCO




Page 94

4. Introduction

4.1 On the 25 September 2000 the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) was
brought into effect in England and Wales. The purpose of the Act was to ensure that all
public authorities were able to carry out directed (covert) surveillance on a statutory
basis without breaching The Human Rights Act 1998, Article 8, the right to privacy.

4.2 The powers to access communications data are set out in section 21-25 of RIPA 2000.
The Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Communications Data) Order 2003 (S.L
2003/3172) also applies. These powers apply to local authorities.

4.3 RIPA specifies how different public sector bodies, including the police, can use the Act
to assist in performing their duties. RIPA allows surveillance to be undertaken and
communications data (including telephone records) to be obtained for a variety of
reasons, including issues relating to national security. However, under RIPA local
authorities are restricted to using the legislation only in relation to the prevention and
detection of crime.

4.4 Some areas where a crime is suspected are the responsibility of the local authority to
take the lead in the first instance e.g. investigations into Housing Benefit fraud,
breaches of environmental health and trading standards legislation etc. It is for this
reason that the legislation allows local authorities to use the ‘prevention and detection
of crime’ reason when applying the RIPA legislation.

4.5 The use and operation of RIPA is detailed in Home Office guidelines. These also
contain the forms which must be used by local authorities when using RIPA. All
applications to undertake surveillance and obtain communications data must be
submitted using the appropriate forms.

4.6 All applications must be authorised by a nominated officer who has been provided with
appropriate training in the use and application of RIPA. In addition, RIPA legislation
requires that all applications are reviewed at regular intervals and either renewed or
cancelled depending on the current status of the investigation. All reviews, renewals
and cancellations also have to be completed using the relevant Home Office forms and
approved by the officer authorising the original application.

4.7 Copies of all applications, reviews, renewals and cancellations must be maintained by
the originating officer, but RIPA also requires a separate central record to be
maintained within the local authority and a nominated contact officer who is responsible
for the oversight of the use of RIPA across the organisation.

4.8 The use and application of RIPA legislation is monitored by two government offices
who both report to parliament and the Secretary of State. The Office of the Surveillance
Commissioner (OSC) monitors the use of RIPA in relation to directed surveillance. The
Interception of Communications Commissioner's Office (ICCO) is responsible for
monitoring the use of RIPA in relation to communications data. Visits are made to local
authorities to monitor compliance with RIPA legislation by both the OSC and the ICCO.

Page 2 of 5



5.1

Page 95

Both organisations require annual returns and performance information to be made by
the nominated contact officer.

Background

The issue of RIPA and its use within councils across England has been the subject of
considerable media interest over recent weeks. The Local Government Association
(LGA) Chairman, Sir Simon Milton, has also written to all councils in England
requesting that leaders ensure that the powers are only used after careful
consideration and that operations are ‘necessary and proportionate to prevent or detect
a criminal offence’, as stipulated in the Act.

5.2 The LGA Chairman stated in his letter that ‘Parliament clearly intended that councils

should use the new powers, and generally they are being used to respond to residents’
complaints about fly tippers, rogue traders and those defrauding the council tax or
housing benefit system. Time and again, these are the just the type of crimes that
residents tell us that they want to see tackled. Without these powers, councils would
not be able to provide the level of reassurance and protection local people demand and
deserve.” The LGA, in conjunction with Local Authorities Co-ordinators of Regulatory
Services (LACORS), stated that RIPA should not be used for trivial matters and they
specifically identify dog fouling and littering as two areas they consider to be trivial.

5.3 It was therefore considered appropriate, at this time, to provide the Audit Committee

6.

6.1

with details of the operation of RIPA at Haringey, and provide assurance that the
Council's procedures and practices are compliant with the legislation and the LGA
requirements.

Operational Procedures in Haringey
Haringey Council is committed to complying with RIPA to ensure both that an

investigation is carried out properly and that the investigation is necessary and
proportionate to the alleged offence.

6.2 Within Haringey, the nominated officer with responsibility for oversight of its application

is the Head of Audit and Risk Management. A central record of all RIPA applications,
reviews, cancellations and renewals is maintained securely, both electronically and in
hard copy (as required by the OSC and ICCO) within the Audit and Risk Management
business unit. Reminders are sent to all officers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the
central record is complete and up to date. Records are held in accordance with Audit
and Risk Management's records management policy, which complies fully with Data
Protection Act requirements.

6.3Haringey maintains a list of officers who are able to approve RIPA forms and these

officers have been trained in the use and application of RIPA. Refresher training is
provided on a regular basis to ensure all officers are kept up to date with their roles and
responsibilities. To support them further, Haringey has produced its own local guidance
notes, which are based on the Home Office guidance, and these are circulated to all
officers involved in RIPA when updates to the legislation or standard forms are issued.
These guidance notes are also held on the Council’s intranet site. The Head of Audit
and Risk Management maintains an oversight role for all RIPA applications to ensure
they comply with requirements.

Page 3 of 5



Page 96

6.4The Head of Audit and Risk Management, as the nominated officer, provides the
required annual returns and performance information to the OSC and ICCO and acts as
the liaison officer to facilitate the inspection visits for both offices.

6.5The OSC and ICCO undertake regular inspections of all councils to ensure that their
systems and procedures are compliant with RIPA legislation. Haringey Council has
been inspected by both the OSC and ICCO. All results of inspection visits by the OSC
and ICCO are reported to the council’'s Audit Committee, together with any action plans
to address any identified gaps in performance. The results of the various inspection
visits which have been completed to date are detailed in the sections below.

6.6 Haringey make limited use of RIPA legislation and has never used the legislation for
trivial matters, and specifically not for dog fouling and littering. Since the legislation has
been in place, the Council has applied to use RIPA a total of 85 times. Details of the
numbers of applications are shown in Table 1 below.

6.7 The information in Table 1has been taken from the central electronic record of all RIPA
applications. The central record is maintained by Audit and Risk Management and holds
high level details of the application only (reference number, applicant's name and
department, authorising officer, renewal and cancellation dates), in order to comply with
the Data Protection Act.

Table 1

Year | 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Department
Urban 1 0 3 16 6 18 15 4
Environment
Corporate 3 7 6 4 2 0 0 0
Resources

Total 4 7 9 20 8 18 15 4

6.8In order to maintain an oversight of RIPA use and provide the required data and
statistical returns to the OSC and ICCO, Audit and Risk Management hold hard copies
of all application, renewal and cancellation forms. These are retained within audit and
Risk Management for a period of three years and then disposed of using secure
confidential waste procedures. Individual departments may hold the records for longer

periods if the operations result in court action or police investigation.

6.9 Table 2 below provides details of the use made of RIPA over the previous three year
period. All applications have been made in accordance with RIPA legislation and
requirements and have been appropriately authorised. In addition, some of the
individual applications have been subject to review by the OSC and ICCO as part of
their inspection processes. Details of the outcome of these inspections is contained in

the sections below.

6.10 Members will note that the Council primarily uses RIPA to deal with serious cases of
anti-social behaviour including drug-dealing, gang-related violence and illegal brothels.
They have also been used sparingly to tackle fly-tipping, unlicensed trading and trading
counterfeit goods, and benefits fraudsters.

Page 4 of 5




Page 97

Table 2

Year 2006 2007 2008 Total

Action taken

Urban Environment
Identifying persons dumping 1 - - 1
refuse on estates
Identifying persons engaged in 13 12 4 29
anti-social behaviour
Acquiring communications data 2 1 - 3
Identifying persons defacing 1 - -
buildings
Identifying unlicensed traders 1 - - 1
Identifying counterfeit goods - 1 -
Identifying persons working - 1 - 1
whilst claiming sickness benefit

—

7. Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC)

7.1 The OSC has undertaken three inspection visits in total, in October 2002, August 2004
and May 2006. No major weaknesses in the council’s application of RIPA have been
identified by the OSC inspector during the three visits, although recommendations to
improve some areas and implement best practice have been made.

7.2 At the last visit in May 2006, the inspector's report concluded that the Council had
maintained its standards of compliance with RIPA since the last inspection (August
2004); and that the specific recommendations made in the previous report were all
implemented in a timely manner.

7.3 The reports from the OSC, together with the Council’s response and action plans to
address the recommendations, have all been reported to the Audit Committee as
follows: 1 May 2003; 14 October 2004; and 20 July 2006. All recommendations made
have been addressed.

8. Interception of Communication Commissioner’s Office (IcCCO)

8.1The ICCO has undertaken one inspection visit, in May 2007, to review compliance with
RIPA legislation. The inspector concluded that the council was achieving a good level of
compliance with the legislation and that the standard of applications for communications
data made to date was of good quality.

8.2No major weaknesses in compliance were identified, although a number of
recommendations to improve some areas were made. The inspector also raised a
number of best practice issues which were recommended for adoption by the council.

8.3The final report was issued in September 2007 and was reported, together with the

Council's response and action plan to address the recommendations, to the Audit
Committee on 28 January 2008. All recommendations made have been addressed.

Page 50f 5



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Update on Key Audit Issues
	8 Progress report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit
	9 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy relating to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit Fraud
	Appx 1 A-F and corruption housing benefits

	10 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy
	11 Money Laundering Regulations 2007
	12 Internal audit - 1st quarter progress report
	13 Report on the work of the Audit Committee 2007/08
	14 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000

